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CLEAN STEAM IS USED FOR STERHLIZATION, HUMIDIFICATION AND PROCESS HEATING.

International, In.

NICHOLSON STEAM TRAP, ADIVISION OF CIRCOR INTERNATIONAL, IS A LEADING PROVIDER OF SANITARY STEAM TRAPS AND
FILTERS USED ON CLEAN STEAM FOR BIOTECH, PHARMACEUTICAL MEDICAL AND FOOD INDUSTRY APPLICATIONS.
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CIRCOR INTERNATIONAL SUPPLIES AN EXTRAORDINARY VARIETY OF VALVES AND

RELATED PRODUCTS AND SERVICES TO A WIDE RANGE OF USERS AROUND THE WORLD.

OUR CUSTOMERS ARE IN AEROSPACE, CHEMICALS, FOOD PROCESSING, MANUFACTURING,
MARITIME, MEDICAL, MILITARY, OIL AND GAS, PETROCHEMICALS, PHARMACEUTICALS,

POWER GENERATION, SEMICONDUCTORS, TEXTILES AND MANY OTHER MARKETS.

WE HAVE PLANTS THROUGHOUT THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA, EURCPE, AND A JOINT

VENTURE IN THE PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA.

WE ARE MANAGING OUR FUTURE, WITH GROWTH FUELED BY ACQUISITIONS AND

INTERNAL PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT.
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Anumber of factors influenced our 2002 results. As you might expect, the most compelling was the extremely
challenging business environment. The real test of a company’s strength is its performance in difficult times,
however, and Circor metthe challenge well. While our total revenues slipped, our profits and cash flow
remained strong, debtwas reduced to an all-time low, and we continued our successful acquisition program.

A Good Year in a Difficult Time

Overall, netrevenues declined 3% to $331.4 million. Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Control Products revenues
were down 1% to $190.5 million. Drops in the commercial aerospace, electrical power generation and general
industrial markets were partially offset by our relatively stable HVAC steam business, higher military aerospace orders
and the impactof acquisitions. Petrochemical Products revenues declined 6% to $140.9 miltion. North American
markets declined with less drilling and exploration activity. International sales were strong, however, especiallyin
the Middle and Far East, where oil and gas development grew.

Netincome decreased less than 1% to $15.6 million. (it would have declined 15% if we had not adopted the required
change in goodwill amortization.) Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Control Products segment operating income
decreased 11% to $28.6 million, with return on sales dropping from 17% to 15% as a result of lower



revenues. Operating income in the Petrochemical Products segment increased for the second consecutive year,
by 3% to $9.5 million. Return on sales grew from 6% to 7% during the year, despite declining revenues.

During 2002, we generated $18.3 million of free cash flow {net cash provided by operating activities less capital
expenditures and dividends paid), equal to 1.2times our netincome. Net debt {total debtless cash, cash equivalents
and marketable securities) to net capitalization (net debt plus total equity) was further reduced to 13% from 16%
atthe end of 2001 and from 42% atthe time of our initial public listing in October of 1999.

A Solid Foundation

Our market diversity helped diffuse the impact of any particular industry or customer. No individual customer
represents over 6% of our revenues.

Our business strategy and operating philosophy also had positive impacts. We continued to emphasize conservative
financial and business management principles, focusing on cost containment, positive cash flow and acquisition
opportunities that will produce immediate results.

Successfui Acquisition Management
We have been very effective inidentifying, acquiring and integrating excellent companies that fit our objectives.

In October 2002, we added two more. U.S. Para Plate provides industrial, military and aerospace valve products
andtechnologies for a variety of applications such as the Government's airborne laser program, ground support
and other aerospace/military projects. Tomco Products expands our global industrial instrumentation valve

and fitting business with a full line of quick-couplers for general-purpose industrial applications and more
sophisticated instrumentation markets.

With combined annual revenues of approximately $13 million, these acquisitions should make an immediate
contribution to our earnings, growing as we apply our manufacturing and purchasing expertise and expand their
sales through our existing channels.

Management for the Future

We expanded our Board of Directors from five to seven members, establishing a Nominating/Corporate Governance
Committee and appointing alead director who will chair periodic sessions of the independent members of

our Board. Besides increasing management oversight by making our Board larger and more independent, we
enhanced its expertise in the areas of operational management, finance and investment banking.

Long Range Optimism

While we cannot predict whether the economy will improve materially in the coming months, we believe we can
look forward to the long term with confidence. The strength of our customer base is a significant asset. Qur
customers are generally solid, well-established organizations that provide basic products and services around
the world —in energy, transportation, defense, health care and other industries that are not subject to faddish
cycles or extreme fluctuations. We believe they respond to the core business values that we think are important —
gthics, transparency, and conservatism.

Your Board of Directors and our employees are committed to delivering superior results to our customers and
shareholders. We thank you for your support and look forward to sharing our continuing success with you.

NN

David A. Blass, Sr.
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CIRCOR IS ONE OF THE WORLD'S LARGEST SOURCES OF |

COMMERCIAL AIRCRAFT VALVES WITH PRODUCTS IN EVERY

SIGNIFICANT AIRPLANE THAT BOEING PRODUCES.

CIRCOR CONTROL VALVES, REGULATORS AND ACTUATORS

PLAY KEY ROLES IN FOOD MANUFACTURING

Serving the World's Essential Industries

Accaording to our estimates, Circor is the number one provider of steam regulators for domestic HYAC and marine
steam applications in the United States; the world's second largest source of commercial aircraft valves;

the world’s third largest maker of industrial valves and fittings for instrumentation applications; and one of the
top three manufacturers of domestic ball valves for oil and gas applications.

Our productrange is tremendous. The 56-inch diameter stainless steel ball valve produced in our Pibiviesse S.p.A.
subsidiary in Milan for gas pipeline use weighs more than 53 tons, and is one of the largest valves in the world.

Our smallest product, atthe other end of the Circor spectrum, is the 1/16” valve made by our Hoke plantin
Spartanburg, SC, for medical and biochemical applications that require very precise control.




CIRCOR'S HOKE SUBSIDIARY WAS SELECTED AS DOW CHEMICAL'S EXCLUSIVE
GLOBAL AGREEMENT SUPPLIER FOR SMALL VALVES AND FITTINGS REQUIRING

PRECISE, EFFICIENT, AND SAFE FLUID-CONTROL SYSTEMS.

TOP EQUIPMENT MANUFACTURERS KNOW THEY CAN RELY ON CIRCOR

PRODUCTS FOR SAFETY, DEPENDABILITY AND EFFICIENCY.

A Business Built on a Solid Foundation

Our customer base is one of our great strengths. itis a rich and diverse collection of solid organizations;
companies with long histories and well-earned reputations for excellence, not prone to significant change
when temporary market shifts or extreme economic cycles occur.

Qur customers’ diversity is consistent with the extraordinary range of our products. As the
following examples only begin to indicate, our products play important roles in many, if not
alt, of the world’s basic industries.

Aerospace and Defense

Inthe aerospace industry, The Boeing Company is Circor’s largest end-use customer. We maintain a positive,
growing relationship with Boeing’s Commercial Airplane Division. Boeing uses a variety of our products, ranging
from simple check and relief valves to complex motor operated and fuse valves. They can be found on every
significant airplane that Boeing produces.

2002 Circor International Annual Report










CIRCOR PRODUCTS MEET THE CHALLENGES OF EXACTING CONDITIONS

THAT DEMAND VERY PRECISE CONTROLS.

CIRCOR PRODUCTS WIiLL BE USED IN THE BASF/SINQPEC MULTI-BILLION DOLLAR

PETROCHEMICAL PROCESSING OPERATION IN NANJING, PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA.

THE WORLD'S THIRD LARGEST MAKER OF INDUSTRIAL

INSTRUMENTATION VALVES AND FITTINGS USED IN A VARIETY OF

APPLICATIONS INCLUDING SEMICONDUCTOR MANUFACTURING.

By providing high quality praducts, Circle Seal Controls in Corona, California is growing its presence in aerospace
and other high-tech markets. Circle Seal provides flow control valves to Lockheed Martin Aeronautics Company
for both the F-16 and F-22fighter aircraft. It also works closely with Northrop Grumman on numerous aerospace,
missile and defense projects.

n 2002, Circle Seal received a prestigious “Key Plan Preferred Supplier Award,” based
on its ability te continually provide timely, high quality products to suppeort Northrop
Grumman's integrated systems, thus helping to assure that our armed services have
what they need to succeed.

Onthe leading edge of state-of-the-art defense technology, one of our new acquisitions, U.S. Para Plate, is working
closely with TRW and the U.S. military to develop a high-energy laser capable of shooting down an artillery shell
or missile in mid-flight. U.S. Para Plate’s valves and regulators help create a burst of concentrated light energy
photonsto be locked onto a speeding target. Successfully tested, these lasers are expected to shift the paradigm
for defense capabilities and change the face of the battlefield.




THE NUMBER ONE PROVIDER OF STEAM REGULATORS FOR HVAC

AND MARINE STEAM APPLICATIONS IN THE UNITED STATES.
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CIRCOR'S CIRCLE SEAL CONTROLS SUBSIDIARY EARNS NORTHROP GRUMMAN

"PREFERRED SUPPLIER” AWARD FOR MILITARY SYSTEMS SUPPORT.

Petrochemicals and Energy

In a different type of industry, Hoke, Inc., one of Circor's key business units in the Instrumentation and Thermal
Fluid Controls Products Group, has been a major supplier to BASF for many years. In 2001, Hoke signed a Global
Supplier Agreement with BASF for instrumentation valves and fittings. More recently, it was awarded an
Umbrella Agreement from BASF to supply all instrument tube fittings for a BASF/Sinopec multi-billion dollar
joint venture projectin Nanjing, People’s Republic of China. This project is an integrated petrochemical
processing operation that will consist of a main plant utilizing a steam cracker to produce 600 thousand metric
tons of ethylene per year which, in turn will supply nine of BASF’s strategic business units downstream that
produce various chemicals including pelyethylene, ethylene glyccls, methylamines and numerous acids.

As major companies continue to strive toward maximum efficiency in operations and cost control, industry leaders
like The Dow Chemical Company rely more heavily on creating significant relationships with their key suppliers.
Dow's effort to maximize its position in the chemical industry requires that Dow routinely evaluate its suppliers of
critical components to determine and rank their product performance, service levels, price and availahility.

2002 Circor International Annual Report
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CIRCOR IS A LEADING PROVIDER TO KEY ENERGY PRODUCERS AROUND THE WORLD.

HYUNDA! HEAVY INDUSTRIES USES CIRCOR PETROCHEMICAL VALVES FOR

ENGINEERING, CONSTRUCTION AND PROCUREMENT PROJECTS

LOCKHEED MARTIN AERONAUTICS BUILDS CIRCOR VALVES

INTO F-16 AND F-22 FIGHTER AIRCRAFT.

Where possible, Dow then forges agreements with certain select suppliers. As a result of a thorough evaluation
thatwas conducted in 2001, Hoke was selected as Dow’s exclusive Global Agreement supplier for small valves
and fittings and was awarded an exclusive long-term contract to supply Dow with its global requirements for all
new construction and MRO requirements. Hoke's focus on meeting the critical needs of customers like Dow is the
driving force behind product development, quality assurance, cost effective and innovative business practices.

Serving the energy industry, KF Industries of Circor's Petrochemical Products Group is a critical supplier to Devon
Energy Corporation and Dominion Exploration & Production, Inc. Both of these companies rely heavily on KF
Industries to provide fioating ball valves, trunnicn valves and check valves for their oil and gas production operations.

Ininternational oil and gas markets and throughout the Far East, Hyundai Heavy Industries uses KF Industries’
petrochemical valves for engineering, construction and procurement projects such as topside production gathering
and processing applications on offshore fixed platforms, floating production, storage, and offloading vessels.




POWER GENERATION IS ONE OF CIRCOR'S MANY LONG-TERM GROWTH MARKETS.
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CIRCOR IS A LEADER IN DEVELOPING INNOVATIVE PRODUCTS FOR HYDROGEN

FUEL CELLS AND OTHER NEW TECHNOLOGIES.

A Base for the Future

The examples onthese pages have provided only a brief glimpse into our customer base. They have beenincluded
to illustrate the kinds of demanding requirements that we meet regularly as we continue to add to that base.
Through commitment, hard work and imagination, we have succeeded by anticipating and exceeding

customer expectations.

No one can predict the needs of tomorrow’s emerging industries. Since our customers are —and have always
been —organizations that provide many of the basic products and services that the world depends on today,
we have good reason to believe that our products will be atthe heart of vital systems in the future as well.

For decades, the companies that are now Circor International have responded to customer needs and wishes
with efficient, reliable and innovative control devices.

With teamwork and original thinking, we will continue to produce the high levels of
engineered solutions that attract and retain the loyalties of customers throughout the
industrialized world.

2002 Circor International Annual Report




Fiscal Year Charts'
Dollars in millions, except per share information
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14 Selected Financial Data’

Dollarsinthousands
1999 ProForma {

i YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

1999 2000 2001 2002

NET REVENUES ‘, $ 314,726 $ 316,863 $ 343,083 $ 331,448
GROSS PROFIT 100,496 95,791 103,477 98,285
OPERATING INCOME 27,627 27,636 33,617 30,374
NET INCOME 9,894 10,560 15,596 15,577
TOTAL ASSETS 367,085 347,062 386,121 390,734
NET DEBT® 119,974 83,341 40,652 35,544
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (519} 31,700 44,847 24,925
CAPITAL SPENDING ‘ 11,984 3,743 4,950 4,418
DIVIDENDS PAID § - 1,502 2,169 2,255
FREE CASH FLOW" ( $ (12,503} $ 26455 § 37728 $§ 18,252

|
' Historically, the Circor fiscal year ended June 30, consistent with the former parent’s fiscal year. Coincident with the October 18, 1399 spin-off, Circor adopted the calendar year for reporting purposes.

Financiai data for 1999 contains certain adjustments necessary to report our results of operations as if we had been a separate, publicly owned company.

? Net cash provided by operating activities less capital expenditures and dividends paid.
¢ Total debt less cash, cash equivalents and marketabte securities.




Diversification of End-Markets

Commercial & Military Aerospace

Chemical Processing

Pharmaceutical, Medical
and Analytical Instrumentation
Maritime

Process & Power

HVAC

0il & Gas Distribution & Refining

0il & Gas Exploration & Production

Circor in the Marketplace

Brand Names

Principal Products

Primary Markets

INSTRUMENTATION AND THERMAL FLUID CONTROLS PETROCHEMICAL
Circle Seal Controls ~ Leslie Controls KF Industries
Atkomatic Valve Spence Engineering KF Telford

Hoke Nicholson Steam Traps Engineered Products
GO Regulator CPC-Cryolab KF Contromatics
Aerodyne Controls Rockwood Swendeman Pibiviesse

U.S. Para Plate RTK SKVC

Tomco Products Sartvon Rohr

SSIEquipment

Miniature (under 3"diameter) valves, regulators, compression Full range (up to 60" diameter)
tube fittings, manifold control systems, motion switches and ball valves, check valves,
quick couplers. butterfly valves, needle

valves, gate valves, manifold
valves, pipeline closures
and strainers.

Large {up to 24" diameter) control and safety relief valves,
regulators, steam traps, strainers, sensors, positioners, level
indicators, steam water heaters and refated service centers.

Oil and gas exploration,
production, refining
and transmission,
chemical and general
industrial processing.

Aerospace, military, petrochemical processing, general
industrial, medical and analytical instrumentation,
power generation, municipal and institutional heating,
U.S. Navy and commercial marine.
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Worldwide Divisions and Qffices

Circorinternational, Inc.
35 Corporate Drive

Suite 290

Burlington, MA 01803-4244
Tel  781.270.1200

Fax  781.270.1299
www.circor.com

Aerodyne Contrals

30 Haynes Court
Ronkonkoma, NY 11779

Tel  631.737.1900

Fax  631.737.1912
www.aerodyne.controls.com

Atkomatic Valve

2301 Wardlow Circle

P.0. Box 3300

Corona, CA 92880

Tel  909.270.5200

Fax  909.270.6201
www.circle-seal.com/atkomatic

Circle Seal Controls, Inc.
2301 Wardlow Circle
Corona, CA 92880

Tel 909.270.6200

Fax  909.270.6201
www.circle-seal.com

CPC-Cryolab

12501 Telecom Drive
Tampa, FL 33637-0906
Tel  813.978.1000
Fax  813.977.3329
www.cpe-cryolab.com

GO Regulator

405 Centura Court
Spartanburg, SC 29303
Tel  864.574.7966
Fax  864.587.5608
www.goreg.com

Hoke, Inc.

405 Centura Court
Spartanburg, SC 29303
Tel  864.574.7966
Fax  864.587.5608
www.hoke.com

KF Contromatics

1500 S.E. 89th Street
Oklahoma City, OK 73149
Tel  405.631.1533

Fax  405.634.5034
www.contromatics.com

KF industries, Inc.

1500 S.E. 89th Street
Oklahoma City, OK 73149
Tel  405.631.1533

Fax  405.631.8978
www.kfvalves.com

KF Teiford Engineered Products
9430-39th Avenue

Edmonton, Alberta T6E 5T3
Canada

Tel  780.463.8633

Fax  780.461.1588
www.telford.ca

Leslie Controls, inc.
12501 Telecom Drive
Tampa, FL 33637-0906
Tel  813.978.1000

Fax  813.978.0984
www.lesliecontrols.com

Nicholson Steam Trap

150 Coldenham Road

P.0.Box 230

Walden, NY 12586

Tel  845.778.5566

Fax  845.778.7123
www.nicholsonsteamtrap.com

Pibiviesse S.p.A.

Via Bergamina, 24

20014 Nerviano (Milan}
ltaly

Tel  011.390.331.408711
Fax  011.390.331.408800
www.pibiviesse.it

Regeltechnik Kornwestheim GmbH
Max-Planck-Strasse 3

70806 Karnwestheim

Germany

Tel  011.49.7154.13.140

Fax  011.48.7154.13.1431
www.rtk.de

Rockwood-Swendeman

150 Coldenham Road

P.0.Box 230

Walden, NY 12586

TJel  845.778.5566

Fax  845.778.7133
www.rockwoodswendeman.com

Sartvon Rohr S.A.S.

25 Rue de Ja Chapelle, B.P.2
68620 Bitschwiller Les Thann
France

Tel  011.33.389.37.7950
Fax  011.33.383.37.7951
www.sart-von-rohr.fr

Spence Engineering Co., Inc.
150 Coldenham Road
P0.Box230

Walden, NY 12586

Tel  845778.5566

Fax  845.778.1072
www.spenceengineering.com

$SI Equipment, Inc.

5470 Harvester Road
Burlingtan, Ontario L7L5N5
Canada

Tel  905.333.6440

Fax  905.333.5235
www.ssiequipment.com

Suzhou KF Vaive Co., Ltd.
(jointventure)

679 Renmin Road

Suzhou, China 215001

Tel  011.86.512.6752.6520
Fax  011.86.512.6752.5070

Tomco Products, Inc.

882 Callendar Boulevard
Painesville Township, OH 44077
Tel  44(.358.1000

Fax  440.358.1066
www.tomcoquickcouplers.com

U.S. Para Plate Corporation
12810 Earhart Avenue
Auburn, CA 95602

Tel  530.885.8187

Fax  530.885.8117
www.usparaplate.com
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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

This report contains certain statements that are “forward-looking statements” as that term is defined under the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the “Act”) and releases issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission.
The words “may,” “hope,” “will,” “should,” “expect,” “plan,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “believe,” “estimate,” “predict,”
“potential,” “continue” and other expressions which are predictions of or indicate future events and trends and which
do not relate to historical matters, identify forward-looking statements. We have used forward-looking statements in a
number of parts of this report, including, without limitation, “Item 1, Qur Business”, including specifically the section
captioned “Our Business Objectives and Strategies”, and “ltem 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.” We beligve that it is important to communicate our future expectations to our
stockholders, and we, therefore, make forward-looking statements in reliance upon the safe harbor provisions of the
Act. However, there may be events in the future that we are not able to accurately predict or control, and our actual
results may differ materially from the expectations we describe in our forward-looking statements. Forward-looking
statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, which may cause our actual results,
performance or achievements to differ materially from anticipated future results, performance or achievements
expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. We have included a discussion of some of these risks and
uncertainties under the heading “Certain Risk Factors That May Affect Future Results.” We have discussed these risks
and uncertainties in detall within this section and encourage you to read it in jts entirety in order to understand the risks
and uncertainties that can affect our forward-looking statements, as well as our business generally.

" n ”»ou

Available Information

We file periodic reports on Form 10-K and 10-Q with the Securities and Exchange Commission {“SEC") on a quarterly
basis and a Definitive Proxy Statement on an annual basis. These and other reports filed by us, with, ar furnished to, the
SEC in accordance with section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, are available free of
charge from the SEC on their website at http://www.sec.gov. Additienally, our Form 10-Q and Form 10-K reports are
available without charge, as soon as reasonably practicable after they have been filed with the SEC, from our website at
www.circar.com by using the “Investor Relations” hyperlink.

Our History

We were established by our former parent, Watts industries, Inc. ("Watts"), to continue to operate the former industrial,
oit and gas businesses of Watts. On October 18, 1999, Watts distributed all of our outstanding common stock to Watts
shareholders of record as of Octaber 6, 1999 in a tax-free distribution. As a result, information related to historical
activities of our business units also include time periods when they constituted the former industrial, oil and gas
businesses of Watts. In connection with the spin-off, our common stock was listed on the NYSE under the symbol “CIR”
and we entered into agreements with Watts regarding licensing and tax sharing arrangements, benefits and
indemnification matters. As used in this report, the terms “we,” “us,” “our,” and “CIRCOR” mean CIRCOR International,
inc. and its subsidiaries (unless the context indicates another meaning). The term “common stock” means our commaon
stock, par value $0.01 per share.

Qur Business

We design, manufacture and distribute a broad array of valves and related products and services to a variety of end-
markets for use in a wide range of applications to optimize the efficiency and/or ensure the safety of fluid-control
systems. We have a global presence and operate 17 manufacturing facilities that are located in the United States,
Canada, Western Eurape and the People’s Republic of China. We have twa major product groups: Instrumentation and
Thermal Fluid Controls Products, and Petrochemical Products. Our products are sold through more than 1,300
distributors servicing more than 11,000 customers in over 100 countries around the world. Within our major product
groups, we have used both internal product development and strategic acquisitions to assemble an array of fluid-control
products and technologies that enable us to address our customers’ unique fluid-control application needs.




instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Controls Products Group. The Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Controls Products
Group designs, manufactures and distributes valves, fittings and controls for diverse end-uses, including
instrumentation, aerospace, cryogenic and steam applications. Selected products include precision valves,
compression tube and pipefitting, control valves, relief valves, couplers, regulators and strainers, The Instrumentation
and Thermal Fluid Controls Products Group consists primarily of the following product brand names: Aerodyne Controls;
Circle Seal Controls; Leslie Controls; Nicholson Steam Trap; GO Regulator; Hoke; Spence Engingering; Atkomatic Valive;
CPC-Cryolab; RTK; SART von Rohr; Rockwood Swendeman; SSI Equipment; Tomco Products and U.S. Para Plate.

The Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Controls Products Group accounted for $180.5 million, or 57.5%, of our net
revenues for the year ended December 31, 2002.

We have had a long-standing presence in the steam application markets, starting with our 1984 acquisition of Spence
Engineering Company, Inc. {"Spence Engineering” or “Spence”) and our 1989 acquisitions of Leslie Controls, Inc.
(“Leslie Controls”) and Nicholson Steam Trap, Inc. (“Nicholson Steam Trap”). In January 1999, we acquired SSI
Equipment Inc. (“SS1”) and added a wide variety of strainers to expand our industrial products line. This business was
originally reported within the Petrochemical Products Group. However, in March 2002, we transferred SSI to the
Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Controls Group, to better reflect the products and markets that this business serves.
Priar periads have been restated and net revenues, aperating income, and identifiable assets are not materially different
as a result of this reclassification. In June 2001, we acquired Regeltechnik Kornwestheim GmbH and affiliates {"RTK")
and Société Alsacienne Regulaves Thermiques von Rohr, S.A. (“SART"). We believe that we have a very strong
franchise in steam valve products. Both Leslie Controls and Nicholson Steam Trap have been in the steam pressure
reduction and control business for over 100 years. Spence Engineering has aiso been in these businesses for over

70 years. Due to the reputation of these businesses for reliability and quality, customers often specifically request our
products by brand name. Qur steam valve products are used in: municipal and institutional steam heating and air-
conditioning applications; power plants; industrial and food processing; and commercial and military maritime
applications.

Commencing with the 1990 acquisition of Circle Seal Controls, Inc. (“Circle Seal”), we have acquired eleven businesses
that serve the instrumentation and aerospace fluid control markets. These acquisitions included Aerodyne Controls
(“Aerodyne”) in December 1997, Atkamatic Valve (“Atkomatic”) in April 1998, Hoke, Inc {*Hoke") in July 1998, GO
Regulator in April 1999, Tomco Products, Inc. (“Tomco”} in October 2002 and U.S. Para Plate Corporation (“U.S. Para
Plate”} in October 2002. Aerodyne manufactures high-precision valve components for the medical, analytical, military
and aerospace markets. Aerodyne also provides advanced technologies and control systems capabilities to other
companies in the Instrumentation and Thermal Fiuid Controls Products Group. Atkomatic makes heavy-duty process
solenoid valves that automate the regulation and sequencing of liquid levels or volume flow. GO Regulator offers a
complete line of specialized cylinder valves, customized valves and pneumatic pressure regulators for instrumentation,
analytical and process applications. Tomco produces a full line of quick connect and disconnect couplers for general-
purpose industrial applications and more sophisticated instrumentation markets. U.S. Para Plate develops and produces
high-pressure valves and regulators for aeraspace and military applications.

We significantly expanded the breadth of our instrumentation fluid control product lines with the acquisition of Hoke in
July 1998. Our largest acquisition to date, Hoke provides us with a leading line of Gyrolok® compression tube fittings, as
well as instrumentation ball valves, plug valves, metering valves and needle valves. Circle Seal and Hoke serve several
common markets and we cross-market their products through their respective distribution channels. Furthermore, Hoke,
with nearly 50% of its revenues derived from outside of the United States, significantly expanded our geographic
marketing and distribution capabilities. We integrated the administrative and distribution activities of Circle Seal and
Hoke to further reduce costs. We believe that our ability to provide various instrumentation markets with complete fluid-
control solutions is enhanced by the combined product line offerings of Circle Seal, Hoke and GO Regulator.

With the acquisition of the Cryolab product line in 1995, we entered the cryogenic sector of the valve market, further
enhancing our position in the instrumentation and thermal fluid controls valve business. Since then we have added
Consolidated Precision Corporation ("CPC”}in 1996 and the Rockwood Swendeman product line in 2000 which




collectively gave us a broader array of valve products for demanding cryogenic applications and enabled us to expand
our presence in the industrial gas markets.

Petrochemical Products Group. The Petrochemical Products Group designs, manufactures and distributes flanged-
end and threaded-end floating and trunnion ball valves, needle valves, check valves, butterfly valves, large forged steel
ball valves, gate valves and pipeline closures for use in oil, gas and chemical processing and industrial applications. We
believe that our Petrochemical Products Group is one of the leading producers of ball valves for the oil and natural gas
markets worldwide. The Petrochemical Products Group consists primarily of the following product brand names:

KF Industries; KF Contromatics; Pibiviesse; KF Telford; and Suzhou KF Valve.

The Petrochemical Products Group accounted for $140.9 million, or 42.5%, of our net revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2002.

We entered the petrochemical products market in 1978 with the formation by Watts of the industrial products division
and our development of a floating ball valve for industrial and chemical processing applications. With the acquisition of
KF Industries, Inc. {“KF Industries”} in July 1388, we expanded our product offerings to include floating and trunnion-
supported ball valves and needle valves. KF Industries gave us entry into the oil and gas transmission, distribution and
exploration markets. In 1989, we acquired Eagle Check Valve, which added check valves to our product line. Pibiviesse
S.p.A. (“Pibiviesse”), based in Nerviano, [taly, was acquired in November 1994, Pibiviesse manufactures forged steel
ball valves for the petrochemical market, including a complete range of trunnion-mounted ball valves. Pibiviesse’s
manufacturing capabilities include valve sizes up through 60 inches in diameter, including very high pressure ratings to
meet demanding international oil and gas pipeline and production requirements. In March 1998, we acquired and added
Telford Valve and Specialties, Inc. (“KF Telford”) to KF Industries. KF Telford had been one of KF Industries’ largest
distributors and, with its acquisition, KF Industries increased its presence in Canada, as well as intraduced KF Telford's
products (check valves, pipeline closures, and specialty gate valves) through its worldwide representative network.

KF Telford also has assumed the Canadian sales activities for other of our Petrochemical Products Group companies to
strengthen our overall presence in Canada. During 1999, we consolidated the industrial products division of Watts under
the KF Contromatics name into KF industries in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma. These industrial products consist of carbon
steel and stainless steel ball valves, butterfly valves and pneumatic actuators that are used in a variety of industrial,
pulp, paper and chemical processing applications.

We also own 60% of Suzhou KF Valve Company, Ltd. {“Suzhou KF Valve”), a joint venture located in Suzhou, People’s
Republic of China. Suzhou KF Valve manufactures two inch through twelve-inch carbon and stainless steel ball valves
for us and Suzhou Valve Factory, our joint venture partner. We sell products manufactured by Suzhou KF Valve to
customers worldwide for oil and gas applications and outside the People’s Republic of China for industrial applications.
Our joint venture partner and its related entities have exclusive rights to sell Suzhou KF Valve products for all industrial
{i.e., non-oil and gas) applications within the People’s Republic of China and to certain customers outside the People’s
Republic of China for oil and gas applications.

Industry

Oil and Gas and Petrochemical Markets. The oil and gas and petrochemical markets include domestic and
international oil and gas exploration and production, distribution, refining, pipeline construction and maintenance,
chemical processing and general industrial applications.

Process and Power Markets. The process and power markets use valves to control steam and other fluids for a
variety of applications, including; heating facilities; production of hot water and electricity; freeze protection of external
piping; cleaning by laundries; food processing and cooking; and heat transter applications using steam or hot water in
industrial processes.

HVAC and Maritime Markets. The HVAC market utilizes valves and control systems, primarily in steam-related
commercial and institutional heating applications. Steam control products also are used in the maritime market, which
includes the U.S. Navy and commercial shipping.




Aerospace Markets. The commercial and military aerospace markets we serve include valve applications used on
military combat and transport aircraft, helicopters, missiles, tracked vehicles and ships. Our products also are used on
commercial, commuter and business aircraft, space launch vehicles, space shuttles and satellites. Our products also
are sold into the support infrastructure for these markets, with such diverse applications as ground support
maintenance equipment. We supply products used in hydraulic, fuel, water, and air systems.

Pharmaceutical, Medical and Analytical Instrumentation Markets.

The pharmaceutical industry uses products

manufactured by our Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Contrals Products Group in research and develapment,
analytical instrumentation and process measurement applications. The Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Controls
Products Group also markets its products to original equipment manufacturers of surgical and medical instruments.
Representative applications include: surgical and medical instruments; orthopedic devices and surgical supplies;
diagnostic reagents; electro-medical equipment; x-ray equipment; and dental equipment.

Bur Business Objectives and Strategies

We are focused on providing solutions for our customers’ fluid-control requirements through a broad base of products
and services. We believe many of our product lines have leading positions in their niche markets. Our objective is to

enhance sharehalder value through profitable growth of our diversified, multi-national, fluid-control company. in order
to achieve this objective, our key strategies are to:

@ @ © ® ®

Continue to build market positions;
Improve the profitability of our business;
Expand into various fluid control industries and markets and capitalize on integration opportunities;
Increase product offerings; and

Expand our geographic coverage.

Overall, our growth strategies are expected to continue increasing our market positions, building our product offerings,
enhancing marketing and distribution channels and providing additional opportunities to realize integration cost savings.

Preducts

The following table lists the principal products and markets served by each of the businesses within our two product
groups. Within the majority of our product lines, we believe that we have the broadest product offerings in terms of
distinct designs, sizes and configurations of our valves.

Product Families

Principal Products

Enstrumentation and Thermal Fluid Contsols Products Group

Aerodyne Controls

Circle Seal Controls

CPC, Cryolab and Rockwood
Swendeman

GO Reguilator

Pneumatic manifold switches;
mercury-free motion switches;
pneumatic valves; control
assemblies

Motor aperated valves; check valves;
relief valves; pneumatic valves;
solencid valves; regulators

Cryogenic control and safety relief
valves; valve assemblies

Pressure reducing regulators;
specialized cylinder manifolds; high
pressure regulators; pneumatic
pressure regulators; diaphragm
valves

Primary Markets Served

Aerospace; medical instrumentation;
military; automotive

General industrial, power generation;
medical, pharmaceutical; aerospace;
military; natural gas vehicles

Liguified industrial gases; other high
purity processing

Analytical instrumentation; chemical
processing; semiconductors




Product Families

Hoke

Leslie Controls

Nicholson Steam Trap
RTK and SART

Spence Engineering

SSI Equipment

Tomco Products
U.S. Para Plate
Petrachemical Preducts Group

KF Contromatics

KF Industries

Pibiviesse
KF Telford Engineered

Products
Suzhou KF Valve

Sales and Distribution

Principal Produsts

Compression tube fittings; pipefitting;
instrument ball and needle valves;
cylinders; cylinder valves; actuators

Steam and water regulators; steam
control valves; electric actuated
shut-off valves; steam water heaters

Steam traps; condensate pumps;
unions

Control valves; regulators; actuators;
and related instrumentation products

Safety and relief valves; pilot
operated and direct steam
regulators; steam control valves

Specialty strainers; check valves;
butterfly valves; connectors

Quick connect and disconnect
couplers

High pressure valves and regulators

Threaded-end and flanged-end
floating ball valves; butterfly valves;
pneumatic and electric activators

Threaded-end and flanged-end
floating ball valves; actuators;
pipeline closures; trunnion supported
ball valves; needle valves; check
valves

Forged steel ball valves

Mud valves; pipeline closures, check
valves and specialty gate valves

Flanged and floating ball valves

Primary Markets Served

General industrial; analytical
instrumentation; compressed
natural gas; natural gas vehicles;
chemical processing;
semiconductors

General industrial and power;
maritime; chemical processing;
HVAC

HVAC,; general industrial; industrial
processing

HVAC; industrial; food and beverage;
pharmaceutical

HVAC; general industria!

General industrial; chemical
processing; refining; power; and
HVAC

General industrial; instrumentation

Aerospace; military; industrial wash
systems

0il and gas; refining; generat
industrial; chemical processing

Qil and gas exploration; production;
refining and transmission; maritime;
chemical processing

0il and gas exploration; production;
refining and transmission

0il and gas exploration; production;
refining and transmission

0Oil and gas exploration; production;
refining and transmission; chemical
processing

We sell our products to distributors and end-users primarily through commissioned representatives and through our
direct sales forces. Qur representative networks offer technically trained sales forces with strong relationships to key
markets without fixed costs to us.




We believe that our multifaceted and well established sales and distribution channels constitute a competitive strength,
providing access to all of our markets. We believe that we have good relationships with our representatives and
distributors and we continue to implement marketing programs to enhance these relationships. Ongoing distribution-
enhancement programs include shortening shelf stack delivery, reducing assemble-to-order lead times, introducing
new products, offering competitive pricing and increasing inventory turns.

Manulacturing

We have fully-integrated and highly automated manufacturing capabilities including machining operations and
assembly. Our machining operations feature computer-controlled machine tools, high-speed chucking machines and
automatic screw machines for machining brass, iron and steel components. We believe that our fully-integrated
manufacturing capabilities are essential in the valve industry in order to control product quality, to be responsive to
customers’ custom design requirements and to ensure timely delivery. Product quality and performance are a priority for
our customers, especially since many of our product applications involve caustic or volatile chemicals and, in many
cases, involve processes that are used in the precise control of fluids. We have implemented integrated enterprise-wide
software systems at most of our major locations to make operations more efficient and to improve communications with
our suppliers and customers.

We are committed to maintaining our manufacturing equipment at a level consistent with current technology in order to
maintain high levels of quality and manufacturing efficiencies. As part of this commitment, we have spent a total of
$4.4 million, $5.0 million, and $3.7 million on capital expenditures for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000,
respectively. Depreciation expense for these periods was $10.3 million, $10.0 million, and $10.1 million, respectively.

We believe that our current facilities will meet our near-term production requirements without the need for additional
facilities.

Quality Control

The majority of our products require and have been approved by applicable industry standards agencies in the United
States and European markets. We have consistently advocated the development and enforcement of performance and
safety standards, and are currently planning new investments and implementing additional procedures as part of our
commitment to meet these standards. We maintain quality contral and testing procedures at each of our manufacturing
facilities in order to produce products in compliance with these standards. Additionally, most of our major
manufacturing subsidiaries have acquired 1S0 9000, 3001 or 3002 certification from the International Organization for
Standardization and, for those in the Petrochemical Products Group, American Petroleum Institute certification.

Our products are designed, manufactured and tested to meet the requirements of various government or industry
regulatory bodies. The primary industry standards that certain of our Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Controls
Products must meet include standards promulgated by: Underwriters’ Laboratory; American National Standards
Institute; American Society of Mechanical Engineers; U.S. Military; Federal Aviation Administration; Society of
Automotive Engineers; Boeing Basic and Advanced Management System; Aerospace Quality Assurance System; the
American Gas Association; the Department of Transportation; and European Pressure Equipment Directive (“PED") and
Technical Inspection Association {“TUV"). The primary industry standards required to be met by and applicable to our
Petrochemical Products include: American National Standards Institute; American Society of Mechanical Engineers;
American Petroleum Institute and Factory Mutual.

Product Development

We continue to develop new and innovative products to enhance our market positions. Our product development
capabilities include the ability to design and manufacture custom applications to meet high tolerance or close precision
requirements. For example, KF Industries has fire-safe testing capabilities, Circle Seal has the ability to meet the testing
specifications of the aerospace industry and Pibiviesse can meet the tolerance reguirements of sub-sea and cryogenic
environments. These testing and manufacturing capabilities have enabled us to develop customer-specified
applications, unique characteristics of which have been subsequently utilized in broader product offerings. Our




research and development expenditures for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, were $2.8 million,
$2.6 million, and $2.8 million, respectively.

Raw Materials

The raw materials used most often in our production processes are stainiess steel, carbon steel, aluminum, bronze, and
brass. We purchase these materials from numerous suppliers and have not historically experienced significant
difficulties in obtaining these commodities in quantities sufficient for our operations. However, these materials are
subject to price fluctuations that may adversely affect our results of operations. Historically, increases in the prices of
raw materials have been partially offset by increased sales prices, active materials management, project engineering
programs and the diversity of materials used in our production processes.

Competition

The domestic and international markets for our products are highly competitive. Some of our competitors have
substantially greater financial, marketing, personne! and other resources than us. We consider product quality,
performance, price, distribution capabilities and breadth of product offerings to be the primary competitive factors in
these markets. We believe that new product development and product engineering are also important to our success
and that our position in the industry is attributable, in significant part, to our ability to develop innovative products
quickly, and to adapt and enhance existing products to specific customer applications.

The primary competitors of our Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Controls Products Group include: Swageiok Company;
Parker Hannifin Corporation; Samson AG; Spirax-Sarco Engineering plc; Flowseal (a division of Crane Co.); and Fisher (a
division of Emerson Process Management).

The primary competitors of our Petrochemical Products Group include: Grove/Dresser Valve (a unit of First Reserve
Corporation and Odyssey Investment Partners, LLC); Cooper Cameron Corporation; Apollo (a unit of Conbraco Industries,
Inc.); Jamesbury, Inc. (a division of Metso USA which is part of the Metso Corporation); Balon; and Worcester Controls
Corp. (a unit of Flowserve).

Trademarks and Patsnts

We own patents that are scheduled to expire between 2004 and 2021 and trademarks that can be renewed as long as
we continue to use them. We do not believe the vitality and competitiveness of either of our business segments as a
whole depends on any one or more patents or trademarks. We own certain licenses such as software licenses, but we
also do not believe that our business as a whole depends on any one or more licenses.

Customers, Cyclicality and Seasonality

For the year ended December 31, 2002, revenues from one of our distributors in the Petrochemical Products segment
amounted to $17.6 million. No other single customer accounted for more than 10% of revenues for either the
Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Controls Products Group or the Petrochemical Products Group.

We have experienced and expect to continue to experience fluctuations in revenues and operating results due to
economic and business cycles. Our businesses, particularly the Petrochemical Products Group, are cyclical in nature as
the worldwide demand for oil and gas fluctuates. When the worldwide demand for oil and gas is depressed, the demand
for our products used in those markets declines. Future changes in demand for petrochemical products could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations. Similarly, although not to the same
extent as the oil and gas markets, the aerospace, military and maritime markets have historically experienced cyclical
fluctuations in demand that could also have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or resuits of
operations.

Baclkiog

Our total order backlog was $79.4 million as of February 24, 2003, compared to $76.9 million as of February 24, 2002. We
expect all but $6.4 million of the backlog at February 24, 2003 will be shipped by December 31, 2003. The change in our
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backlog was primarily due to increased orders for major oil and gas projects and thermal fluid controls products and the
October 2002 acquisitions of Tomco and U.S. Para Plate. These increases were partially offset by reductions to order
backlog in our Cklahoma manufacturing facility for Petrochemical Products as a result of decreased oil and gas drilling
in North America.

Emplovees

As of December 31, 2002, our worldwide operations directly employed approximately 2,000 people, including

108 employees at our Suzhou KF Valve joint venture in the People’s Republic of China. We have 83 employees in the
United States who are covered by a single collective bargaining agreement. We also have 137 employees in ltaly,

69 employees in France and 112 employees in Germany covered by governmental regulations or workers councils. We
believe that our employee relations are good at this time.

Segment and Geographic Financial Data

Financial information by segment and geographic area is incorporated herein by reference to Part I, Item 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and note 16 in the notes to
consolidated financial statements included in this report.

Government Regulation Regarding the Environment

As a result of our manufacturing and assembly operations, our businesses are subject to federal, state, local and foreign
laws, as well as other |legal requirements relating to the generation, storage, transport and disposal of materials. These
laws include, without limitation, the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, the Clean Air Act, the Clean Water Act
and the Comprehensive Environmenta! Response and Compensation and Liability Act.

We currently do not anticipate any materially adverse impact on our business, financial condition or results of
operations as a result of our compliance with federal, state, local and foreign environmental laws. However, risk of
environmental liability and charges associated with maintaining compliance with environmental laws is inherentin the
nature of our manufacturing operations and there is no assurance that material liabilities or charges could not arise.
During the year ended December 31, 2002, we capitalized $0.1 million reiated to environmental and safety control
facilities. We expect to capitalize $0.2 million during the fiscal year ending December 31, 2003. We also incurred and
expensed $0.3 million of charges during the year ended December 31, 2002. We expect to incur and expense $0.3 million
in the fiscal year ending December 31, 2003.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We maintain 18 major facilities worldwide, including 17 manufacturing operations located in the United States, Canada,
Western Europe and the People’s Republic of China. Many of these facilities contain sales offices or warehouses from
which we ship finished goods to customers, distributors and commissioned representative organizations. Our executive
office is located in Burlington, Massachusetts.

The Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Controls Products Group has facilities located in the United States, Canada,
Germany, France, and the United Kingdom. Properties in Ronkonkoma, New York, Berlin, Connecticut; Spartanburg,
South Carolina; and Auburn, California are leased. The Petrochemical Products Group has facilities located in the United
States, Canada, Italy and the People’s Republic of China. Properties in Nerviano, ltaly; Naviglio, Italy; Edmonton, Canada;
a distribution center in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma; and Suzhou, People’s Republic of China are leased. Certain of our
facilities are subject to mortgages and collateral assignments under loan agreements with long-term lenders.

In general, we helieve that our properties, including machinery, tools and equipment, are in good condition, are well
maintained, and are adequate and suitable for their intended uses. Our manufacturing facilities generally operate five
days per week on one or two shifts. We believe our manufacturing capacity could be increased by working additional
shifts and weekends. This utilization is subject to change as a result of increases or decreases in orders.



ITERM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We, like other worldwide manufacturing companies, are subject to a variety of potential liabilities connected with our
business operations, including potential liabilities and expenses associated with possible product defects or failures
and compliance with environmental laws. We maintain $5.0 million in aggregate product liability insurance and

$75.0 million under an excess umbrella liability insurance policy. We also maintain a separate product fiability policy
with aggregate limits of $200.0 million for the aviation products produced by our worldwide operations.

We believe this coverage to be consistent with industry practices. Nonetheless, such insurance coverage may not be
adequate to protect us fully against substantial damage claims, which may arise from product defects and failures or
from environmental liability.

Like many other manufacturers of fluid control products, we have been‘named as defendants in a growing number of
product liability actions brought on behalf of individuals who seek compensation for their alleged exposure to airborne
ashestos fibers. In particular, Leslie, Spence, and Hake, all subsidiaries of CIRCOR, collectively have been named as
defendants or third-party defendants in asbestos related claims brought on behalf of approximately 14,000 plaintiffs
against anywhere from 50 to 400 defendants. In some instances, CIRCOR also has been named as successor in interest
to one or more of these subsidiaries. These cases have been brought in state courts in California, Connecticut,
Maryland, Michigan, Mississippi, New Jersey and New York, with the vast majority of claimants having brought their
clainms in Mississippi. The cases brought on behalf of the vast majority of claimants seek unspecified compensatory and
punitive damages against all defendants in the aggregate. However, with respect to the complaints filed on behalf of
approximately 121 plaintiffs in New York, each plaintiff seeks $5.0 million compensatary damages and $5.0 million
punitive damages against the aggregate of defendants under each of six causes of action. Similarly, with respect to the
complaints filed in California on behalf of eleven claimants, each plaintiff seeks approximately $400,000 compensatory
damages and $2.5 million punitive damages against the aggregate of defendants. And, with respect to approximately
1,384 claimants in Mississippi, each such claimant seeks approximately $5.0 million compensatory damages and

$50.0 million punitive damages against the aggregate of defendants.

Any components containing asbestos formerly used in Leslie, Spence and Hoke products were entirely internal to the
product and, we believe, would not give rise to ambient asbestos dust during normal operation. As such, we believe that
we have minimal, if any, liability with respect to the vast majority of these cases and that these cases, in the aggregate,
will not have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. However, due to
the nature and number of variables associated with asbestos related claims, such as the rate at which new claims may
be filed; the availability of insurance policies to continue to recover certain of our costs relating to the defense and
payment of these claims; the impact of bankruptcies of other companies currently or historically defending asbestos
claims, including our co-defendants; the uncertainties surrounding the litigation process from jurisdiction to jurisdiction
and from case to case; the impact of potential changes in legislative or judicial standards; the type and severity of the
disease alleged to be suffered by each claimant; and increases in the expense of medical treatment, we are unabie to
reliably estimate the ultimate costs to us of these claims.

As we previously have disclosed, we learned on July 12, 2000 that the United States Customs Service (“Customs”) had
commenced an investigation to determine whether our subsidiary KF Industries, Inc. (“KF”) was then in compliance with
country of origin marking requirements on those valves that KF imports from sources in the Peaple’s Republic of China
including our joint venture there. We believe that Customs is concluding its investigation and are hopeful that we will be
able to achieve resolution of this matter in the near future. In this regard, although we continue to believe that any such
resolution will not result in any material financial impact, we cannot provide any assurances regarding the timing or
nature of such a resolution. Moreover, if the investigation were to prove that violations of the Customs laws occurred,
KF could be subjected to civil fines, forfeitures and (if such violations were determined to be intentional) criminal
penalties, which could be material.

We are currently a party to or otherwise involved in various administrative or legal proceedings under federal, state or
local environmental faws or regulations involving a number of sites, in some cases as a participantin a group of
potentially responsible parties, referred to as PRPs. Twao of these sites, the Sharkey and Combe Landfills in New Jersey,
are listed on the National Priorities List. With respect to the Sharkey Landfill in New Jersey, we have been allocated
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0.75% of the remediation costs, an amount that is not material to us. With respect to the Combe Landfill, we have settled
both the Federal Government's claim and the State of New Jersey’s claim for an amount that is immaterial to us.
Moreover, our insurers have covered defense and settlement costs to date with respect to the Sharkey and Combe
Landfills. In addition, we have also been named as a PRP with respect to the Solvent Recovery Service of New England
site and the 0ld Southington landfill site, both in Connecticut. These sites are also on the National Priorities List but, with
respect to both sites, we have the right to indemnification from the prior owners of the affected subsidiaries. We also
have been identified as a PRP with respect to the Lightman Drum Company site in New Jersey and, in this matter, we
also have the right to indemnification from the former owners of the affected subsidiary. Based on currently available
information, we believe that any share of clean-up costs at these sites attributable to us will not be material, particularly
given our indemnification rights against the respective former owners.

We have reviewed all of our pending judicial and legal proceedings, reasonably anticipated costs and expenses in
connection with such proceedings, and availability and limits of our insurance coverage, and we have established
reserves that we believe are appropriate in light of those outcomes that we believe are probable and estimabie at this
time.

[TERM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

There were no matters submitted during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by this report to a vote of security
holders through solicitation of proxies or otherwise.

PART i
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “CIR". Quarterly share prices and
dividends declared and paid are incorporated herein by reference to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements
included in this report.

During the first quarter of 2003, we also declared a dividend of $0.0375 per outstanding common share payable on
March 17, 2003 to shareholders of record on March 3, 2003.

Our board of directors is responsible for determining our dividend policy. Although we currently intend to continue
paying cash dividends, the timing and level of such dividends will necessarily depend on our board of directors’
assessments of earnings, financial condition, capital requirements and other factors, including restrictions, if any,
imposed by our lenders.

As of February 28, 2003, there were 15,109,850 shares of our common stock outstanding and we had approximately
123 holders of record of our common stock. We believe the number of beneficial owners of our common stock was
substantially greater on that date.

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2002 regarding our shares of common stock that may be
issued under our existing equity compensation plans, including the 1999 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the “1999
Stock Plan”), and the Management Stock Purchase Plan, which is a component of the 1999 Stock Plan. The table sets
forth the total number of shares of our common stock issuable upon the exercise of assumed options as of December 31,
2002, and the weighted average exercise price of these options:

"




Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities
remaining available for

Number of securities future issuance under
to be issued upon Weighted Average equity compensation
exercise of exercise price of plan (excluding
outstanding options, outstanding options, securities referenced
Plan category warrants and rights warrants and rights in cobumn {=))
(a) {b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by
securityholders ................... 1,398,369 (1) $12.16 (2} 519,461
Equity compensation plans not approved
by security holders ................ - - -

Total ... 1,398,369 $12.16 519,461

(1) Does notinclude 336,407 options with a weighted average exercise price of $11.44, which were issued at the time
of our spin-off from Watts to replace options previously granted by Watts to individuals who became our
employees.

(2) Does notinclude information about outstanding Restricted Stock Units under the 1999 Plan because such units do
not have an exercise price. Subject to vesting and service requirements, Restricted Stock Units will convert to
common stock on a one-for-one basis. See note 11 to the consolidated financial statements for further information
concerning our 1999 Stock Plan in general and restricted stock units in particular.

Use of Proceeds From Registered Securities

On March 16, 2001, we sold 1,552,500 shares of our common stock in a public offering at a price of $13.25 per share
pursuant to a Registration Statement on Form S-3 (the “Registration Statement”) (Registration No. 333-54428), which
was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 15, 2001. The managing underwriters of
the offering were Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated and ING Barings LLC. Our aggregate praceeds from the offering
were approximately $18.7 million reflecting gross proceeds of $20.6 million net of underwriting fees of approximately
$1.3 million and other offering costs of approximately $0.6 million. None of the proceeds of the offering were paid by us,
directly or indirectly, to any of our directors, officers or general partners or any of their associates, to any persons
owning ten percent or more of our outstanding stock, or to any of our affiliates, except for payments made to Goodwin
Procter LLP, the Boston, Massachusetts law firm that represented us in connection with the Registration Statement.
David F. Dietz, a director and officer of our company, is the sole owner of David F. Dietz, P.C, a partner of Goodwin
Procter LLP. The net proceeds from the offering were used consistent with the use of proceeds described in our
registration statement and were disbursed through the quarter ended September 30, 2002. We immediately used

$2.0 million of the $18.7 million in net proceeds received to reduce the balance owed on our unsecured revolving credit
facility to zero. During June 2001, we acquired 100% of SART and 75% of RTK. During March 2002, we acquired the
remaining 25% minority interest in RTK. In the course of acquiring these companies, we utilized $12.6 million of the
proceeds to purchase these businesses and retire a portion of assumed debt. During the second quarter of 2002, we
used $2.5 million of the praceeds for: $1.1 million related to our capital expenditure program, $0.8 million for scheduled
debt reduction payments and $0.5 million for dividends paid to our common shareholders. During the third quarter of
2002, we used $1.6 million for scheduled debt reductions.

ITEM G. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table presents certain selected financial data that has been derived from our audited consolidated
financial statements and notes related thereto and should be read along with the section entitled “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and our audited consolidated financial
statements and notes included in this report.

The consolidated statements of operations and consolidated statements of cash flows data for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, and the consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 are
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derived from, and should be read in conjunction with, our audited consolidated financial statements and the related
notes included in this report. The consolidated statements of operations and consolidated statements of cash flows data
for the six months ended December 31, 1999 and fiscal years ended June 30, 1999 and 1998, and the consolidated
balance sheet data as of December 31, 2000 and 1999 and as of June 30, 1999 and June 30, 1998, are derived from our
audited consolidated financial statements not included in this report.

The selected, unaudited pro forma financial data for 1999 included in the following table are derived from the respective
audited and unaudited consolidated financial statements for those years. The pro forma presentation for 1999 includes
estimated additional administrative expense that would have been incurred by CIRCOR as a publicly owned,
independent company. In addition, estimated incremental interest expense for estimated outstanding borrowings under

the CIRCOR and other credit facilities is provided.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This report contains certain statements that are “forward-looking statements” as that term is defined under the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the "Act”) and releases issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission.
The words “may,” “hope,” “will,” “"should,” “expect,” “plan,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “believe,” “estimate,” “predict,”
“potential,” “continue,” and other expressions which are predictions of or indicate future events and trends and which
do not relate to historical matters, identify forward-looking statements. We beljeve that it is important to communicate
our future expectations to our stockholders, and we, therefore, make forward-looking statements in reliance upon the
safe harbor provisions of the Act. However, there may be events in the future that we are not able to accurately predict
or control, and our actual results may differ materially from the expectations we describe in our forward-looking
statements. Forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, which may
cause our actual results, performance or achievements to differ materially from anticipated future resuits, performance
or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to
such differences include, but are not limited to, the cyclicality and highly competitive nature of some of our end markets
which can affect the overall demand for and pricing of our products, changes in the price of and demand for oil and gas
in both domestic and international markets, variability of raw material and component pricing, fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates, our ability to continue operating our manufacturing facilities at efficient levels and to
successfully implement our acquisition strategy, and the uncertain continuing impact on economic and financial
conditions in the United States and around the world as a result of the September 11 terrorist attacks and related
matters and current tensions in Irag and throughout the Middle East. We advise you to read further about certain of
these and other risk factors set forth under the caption “Certain Risk Factors That May Affect Future Resuits”. We
undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise.

Basis of Presentation

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Certain prior period
financial statement amounts have been reclassified to conform to currently reported presentations. We monitor our
business in two segments: Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Controls, and Petrochemical Products.

In March 2002, we transferred SSI from the Petrochemical Products segment to the Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid
Controls Products segment. We believe that this change better reflects the products and markets that SSI serves. Prior
periods have been restated to reflect this transfer and net revenues, operating income and identifiable assets are not
materially different with this reclassification.

Critical Accounting Policies

The following discussion of accounting policies is intended to supplement the section “Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies” presented in note 2 to our consolidated financial statements. These policies were selected
because they are broadly applicable within our operating units. The expenses and accrued liabilities or allowances
related to certain of these policies are initially based on our best estimates at the time of original entry in our accounting
records. Adjustments are recorded when our actual experience, or new information concerning our expected
experience, differs from underlying initial estimates. These adjustments could be material if our actual or expected
experience were to change significantly in a short period of time. We make frequent comparisons of actual experience
and expected experience in order to mitigate the likelihood of material adjustments.

Revenue Recognition and Allowance for Sales Returns

Revenue is recognized when products are shipped and title has passed to the customer provided that no significant
post-delivery obligations remain and collection of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured. Allowances for sales
returns are recorded as a reduction of revenues based upon historical experience, return policies and contractual
product return rights granted to customers. Adjustments to the allowance account are made as new information
becomes available. Shipping and handling costs invoiced to customers are recorded as compaonents of revenues and
the associated costs are recorded as cost of sales.
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Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We estimate the collectibility of our accounts receivable and the amount of bad debts that may be incurred in the future.
We analyze specific customer accounts, historical experience, customer concentrations and relationships, credit
ratings, and current economic trends when evaluating the adequacy of our allowance for doubtful accounts.

Inventories

Inventories are recorded at the lower of cost or market value. Cost is generally determined on the first-in, first-out
(“FIFQ") basis. Where appropriate, standard cast systems are utilized for purposes of determining cost; the standards
are adjusted as necessary to ensure they approximate actual costs. Estimates of the lower of cost or market value of
inventory are determined at the operating unit level and are evaluated periodically. Estimates for obsolescence or
unmarketable inventory are maintained based on current economic conditions, historical sales quantities and patterns
and, in some cases, the specific risk of loss on specifically identified inventories. Such inventories are recorded at
estimated realizable value net of the costs of disposal.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Effective January 1, 2002, we adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statement No. 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets,” {“Statement No. 142”), and as a result we no longer amartize goodwitl. Statement No. 142
requires that a transitional impairment evaluation of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets be completed within
six months of the date of adoption and then at least on an annual basis thereafter. During the first half of 2002, we
completed our transitional impairment review and determined that there were no impairment losses related to goodwill
and intangibles. During the fourth quarter of 2002, we completed our annual impairment evaluation of goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets and again determined that there were no impairment losses. In assessing the fair value
of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets, projections regarding future cash flows and other factors are made to
determine the fair value of the respective assets. If these estimates or related projections change in the future, we may
be required to record impairment charges.

Other long-lived assets include property, plant, and equipment and intangibles with definite lives. We perform
impairment analyses of our other long-lived assets whenever events and circumstances indicate that they may be
impaired. When the undiscounted future cash flows are expected to be less than the carrying value of the assets being
reviewed for impairment, the assets are written down to fair market value.

Taxes

Significant management judgment is required in determining our provision for income taxes, deferred tax assets and
liabilities and any valuation allowance recorded against deferred tax assets. We have recorded a valuation aliowance
of $0.7 million as of December 31, 2002, due to uncertainties related to our ability to utilize deferred tax assets, primarily
consisting of certain state net operating losses and state tax credits carried forward. The valuation allowance is based
on estimates of taxable income in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate and the period over which our deferred
tax assets will be recoverable.

Other Reserves

We establish reserves for other exposures, such as environmental claims, product liability and litigation costs.
Establishing loss reserves for these matters requires the use of estimates and judgment in regards to risk expasure and
ultimate liability. We estimate such losses using consistent and appropriate methods; however, changes to our
assumptions could materially affect our recorded liabilities for loss.
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Year Ended December 31, 2002 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2001

The following tables set forth the results of operations, percentage of net revenues and the yearly percentage change in
certain financial data for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 {In thousands}:

Vear Ended December 31,
2002 2001 % Change
Nt rBVBNMUES .t $331,448 100.0%  $343,083 100.0% (3.4)%
CoStOf reVENUEBS ..o\t e 233,163 70.3 239,606 69.8 (2.7)
Grossprofit. ... ..o e 98,285 29.7 103,477 30.2 (5.0
Selling, general and administrative expenses .............. 67,166 203 66,919 19.5 0.4
Goodwill amortization expense ..................oiiiin... - - 2,731 08  {100.0)
Specialcharges ........... ... 745 0.2 204 0.1 265.2
Operating inCOME ...ttt it i 30,374 9.2 33,617 9.8 (9.6}
Other expense:
Interest expense, net .......... ... iiiiiiiinn. 6,721 2.1 7,102 2.1 (5.4)
Other (income) expense, net ..............cccovuinnt. {686) {0.2) 521 0.1 {231.7)
Income before incometaxes ........... ... L 24,339 7.3 25,994 16 {6.4)
Provision forinCome taxes ...........oviveevinenennnnn. 8,762 26 10,398 3.1 (15.7)
NetinCome . ... $ 15,577 47% $ 15596 45% (0.1)%

Net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2002 decreased by approximately $11.7 million, or 3.4%, to $331.4 million
campared to $343.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The decrease in net revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2002 was attributable to the following (In thousands):

Total Foreign

Segment 2002 2001 Change Acguisitions Operations Exchange
Instrumentation & Thermal Fluid Controls .... $190,524 $193,297 $ (2,773} $10,518 $(15,325) $2,034
Petrochemical .......................... 140,924 149,786 {8,862) - {11,674) 2712
Total .. ..o $331,448 $343,083 $(11,635) $10,518 $(26,899) 34,746

The Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Controls Products segment accounted for 57.5% of net revenues for the year
ended December 31, 2002 compared to 56.3% for the year ended December 31, 2001. The Petrochemical Products
segment accounted for 42.5% of net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to 43.7% for the year
ended December 31, 2001. :

Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Controls Product revenues decreased $2.8 million, or 1.4%, for the year ended
December 31, 2002. Praduct revenues from general industrial markets decreased $17.5 million, primarily due to reduced
sales volume caused by weak economic conditions in chemical processing, power generation, commercial aerospace and
other general industrial instrumentation markets. Steam and HVAC markets improved later in the year with increased sales
of $2.2 million over the prior year. Incremental revenue of $10.5 million provided from the June 2001 acquisitions of RTK and
SART and the October 2002 acquisitions of Tomco and U.S. Para Plate and a $2.0 million increase in revenues resulting
from changes in exchange rates affecting our European business units also partially offset revenue decreases in other
markets. Petrochemical Products revenues decreased by $8.9 million, or 5.9%. Revenues from our North American
operations decreased by $19.2 million, principally due to reduced oil and gas drilling and production activity and the short
cycle maintenance, repair and overhaul {*"MRO0") business, and to a lesser extent, economic weakness in chemical
processing and general industrial markets. Revenues generated in the People’s Republic of China decreased by $1.2
million. These decreases in revenue were partially offset by a $8.8 million increase in revenues from our Italian subsidiary,
resulting from higher volume shipments of product for large international oil and gas projects; and a $2.7 million increase in
revenues resulting from changes in exchange rates which affected our Canadian and Italian operations.
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Gross profit decreased $5.2 million, or 5.0%, to $38.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to

$103.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Gross margin decreased to 29.7% for the year ended December 31,
2002 compared to 30.2% for the year ended December 31, 2001. Gross profit for the Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid
Controls Products segment decreased $4.9 million. The net decrease consisted of a $9.2 million gross profit reduction
from operations, partially offset by the incremental $3.7 million of gross profit from the June 2001 acquisitions of RTK and
SART and the October 2002 acquisitions of Tomco and U.S. Para Plate, and a $0.6 million increase resulting from
changes in foreign exchange rates affecting our European business units. Gross profit and gross margin decreased due
to soft end-market conditions and reduced sales volume, a lower proportion of higher margin commercial aerospace
and general industrial market products, a higher proportion of lower margin project order shipments, unabsorbed
manufacturing costs that could not be fully aveided as orders declined and increased current year insurance costs.
Gross profit for the Petrochemical Products segment decreased $0.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2002
compared to the year ended December 31, 2001. The net gross profit decrease consisted of a reduction of $0.9 million in
North America caused by lower product sales volume for higher margin maintenance and repair orders, competitive
price reductions and higher insurance costs, partially offset by an increase in the volume, pricing and margin for large
international oil and gas projects, certain manufacturing and operating cost reductions and favarable foreign exchange
rate changes of'$0.6 million.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $0.2 million, or 0.4%, to $67.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002 compared with $66.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Selling, general and
administrative expenses for the Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Controls Products segment increased by
approximately $0.9 million. The net increase was principally the result of: $2.2 million of additional expenses related to
the June 2001 acquisitions of RTK and SART and the October 2002 acquisitions of Tomco and U.S. Para Plate; a

$0.4 million increase due to foreign exchange rate changes; offset by a $1.7 million reduction realized through lower
spending for variable general and administrative and compensation expenses on lower staffing levels, partially offset by
higher insurance costs. Selling, general and administrative expenses for the Petrochemical Products segment
decreased $0.7 million due to $1.0 million of lower variable selling and compensation expenses; partially offset by a $0.3
million increase due to foreign exchange rate changes. Significant expense reductions realized in our North American
operations were partially offset by the higher costs in our ltalian operation as a result of increased sales activity.
Corporate general and administrative expenses increased less than $0.1 million, as a result of higher corporate
development, insurance costs, and legal and professional fees, partially offset by lower variable compensation and
fringe benefit costs.

Goodwill amortization expense was not recorded for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared with $2.7 million for
the year ended December 31, 2001. Goodwill amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2001 consisted of
$2.3 million for the Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Controls Products segment and $0.4 million for the Petrochemical
Products segment. On January 1, 2002, we adopted Staterent No. 142 that requires goodwill no longer be amortized,
See note 2 to the consolidated financial statements for further information on our adoption of Statement No. 142.

Special charges of $0.7 million and $0.2 million were incurred in the Petrochemical Products segment for the years
ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. These charges were associated with the closure, consolidation and
reorganization of certain North American manufacturing operations. Special charges incurred during 2002 consisted of
$0.3 million of manufacturing equipment write-offs, $0.2 million of severance costs for 16 employees and $0.2 million of
exit costs principally related to leased facilities that were closed. Special charges incurred during 2001 consisted of
$0.1 million of severance and $0.1 million of exit costs. Special charges were expensed in the periods incurred. The
accrued liability for severance and exit costs to be paid subsequent to December 31, 2002 is less than $0.1 million.
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The change in operating income for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to the year ended December 31, 2001

was as follows {In thousands):

Total Foreign
Segment 2002 2001 Chenge Acguisitions Operations Exchange
Instrumentation & Thermal Fluid Controls . ... .. $28,614 $32,158 $(3,544) $1,425 $(5,132) $163
Petrochemical ............................ 9,480 9,194 286 - (71) 357
Carparate ...........ccooiiiiiiiii (7,720  (7,735) 15 - 15 -
Total ..o $30,374 $33,617 $(3,243) $1,425 $(5,188) $520

Operating income decreased $3.2 million, or 9.6%, to $30.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to
$33.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Operating income for the Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Controls
Products segment declined $3.5 million, or 11.0%, for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2001. Operating income for this segment was affected by a $7.4 million decrease primarily from: lower
sales volume; reduced sales of higher margin products; unabsorbed manufacturing costs in high volume manufacturing
operations and higher insurance costs, partially offset by reductions in variable general and administrative and
compensation expenses and lower staffing levels. This operating income decrease was partially offset by the

$2.3 million from the discontinuation of amortizing goodwill, the $1.4 million contributed by the June 2001 acquisitions of
RTK and SART and the October 2002 acquisitions of Tomco and U.S. Para Plate, and $0.2 million from changes in foreign
exchange rates. Operating income for the Petrochemical Products segment increased $0.3 million, or 3.1%, for the year
ended December 31, 2002 compared to the year ended December 31, 2001. The increase in the operating income for this
segment consisted of: an increase of $0.4 million due to the discaontinuation of amertizing goodwill; a netincrease of
$0.1 million from aperating activities; a $0.3 million increase due to favorable foreign exchange rate changes, partially
offset by a $0.5 million increase in special charges. The net $0.1 million increase from operating activities primarily was
the result of: higher revenues and the resuiting gross prafits generated from large international oil and gas projects, and
lower variable selling expenses; partially offset by a reduction in sales attributable to weaker MRO demand in oil and
gas markets; domestic price reductions in the second, third, and fourth quarters; and increased insurance costs.

Net interest expense decreased approximately $0.4 million to $6.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2002
compared to $7.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The decrease is primarily related to the $15.0 million
principal payment of our senior notes, the $4.6 million reduction of debt assumed from prior years acquisitions and from
lower average interest rates on variable rate debt. Interest income on invested balances remained unchanged despite
higher average cash balances during 2002 as a result of lower interest rates in 2002.

Net other (income) expense decreased $1.2 million from & net $0.5 million expense for the year ended December 31, 2001
to a net ($0.7) million income for the year ended December 31, 2002. The decrease is primarily attributable to a

$1.1 million increase in favorable foreign exchange income, a $0.4 million reduction in minority interest expense resulting
from reduced profitability of our Chinese joint venture, partially offset by $0.1 million higher losses on the disposal of
capital equipment, $0.1 million in fees incurred for the early extinguishments of debt and a $0.1 million reduction in
nonoperating municipal grant income.

The effective tax rate decreased to 36.0% for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to 40.0% for the year ended
December 31, 2001. The decrease in the tax rate is primarily the result of the elimination of goodwill amortization
expense in accordance with Statement No. 142, which was not deductibie for income tax purposes. Additionally, the
implementation of various tax strategies at the beginning of 2002 provided a modest rate reduction benefit.

Net income decreased less than $0.1 million, ar 0.1%, to $15.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to
$15.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The net decrease is the result of reduced gross profit on lower
current year revenue, additional insurance expenses, and higher special charges in the current year, offset by the
elimination of goodwill amortization expense, improved operating results within the Petrochemical Products segment,
lower non-operating expenses, and reduced net interest expenses, as discussed above.
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Vear Ended December 31, 2001 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2000

The following tables set forth the results of operations, percentage of net revenues and the yearly percentage change in
certain financial data for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 {In thousands):
Year Ended December 31,

2081 2800 % Change

NetreVenUES . ..ottt e e $343,083 100.0% $316,863 100.0% 8.3%
Costofrevenues ...ttt 239,606 69.8 221,072 £9.8 8.4

Grossprofit. . ..o e 103,477 30.2 95,791 30.2 8.0
Selling, general and administrative expenses .............. 66,919 19.5 63,718 20.1 5.0
Goodwill amortization expense .......................... 2,737 038 2,528 038 83
Speciatcharges .....oviii i e 204 0.1 1,908 0.6 (89.3)

Operatingincome ......... ..., 33,617 9.8 27,636 8.7 216
Other expense:

Interest expense, net ...........ciiiiriireeiiiinnns 7,102 21 9,276 28 (23.4)

Other expense,net ............c.ooiirenianinrannn.s. 521 0.1 760 0.2 {31.4)
Income beforeincometaxes ............coiiiiviinin.. 25,994 1.6 17,600 56 417
Provision forincometaxes ..............c.coovieivini.nn.. 10,398 3.1 7,040 2.3 417

Netineome ... e e $ 15,596 45% $ 10,560 33% 47.7%

Net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2001 increased by $26.2 million, or 8.3%, to $343.1 million compared to
$316.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2000. The increase in net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2001
was attributable to the following (In thousands):

Total Foreign
Segment 2001 2000 Change Acquisitions Operations Exchange

Instrumentation & Thermal Fluid Controls .... $193,297 $183524 $ 9,773 $9,911 31,331 $(1,489)
Petrochemical .......................... 149,786 133,339 16,447 - 19,150 (2,703)
Total ..o $343,083 $316,863 $26,220 $9,911 $20,481 $(4,172)

The Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Controls Products segment accounted for 56.3% of net revenues for the vear
ended December 31, 2001 compared to 57.9% for the year ended December 31, 2000. The Petrochemical Products
segment accounted for 43.7% of net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2001 compared to 42.1% for the year
ended December 31, 2000.

Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Controls Product revenues increased $9.8 million, or 5.3%, for the year ended
December 31, 2001. Revenue increases were due to: $9.9 million of incremental revenue from the Rockwood
Swendeman product line, purchased in November 2000, and fram the RTK and SART companies acquired at the end of
June 2001; a $4.0 million net increase in thermal fiuid controls revenues resulting from general year-over-year demand
and increased shipments of marine and industrial steam trap applications offset by reduced revenues for commercial
and other industrial applications; and a $3.5 million increase in revenues from European power and power generation,
medical and general instrumentation markets, primarily due to increased sales penetration and higher volume sales.
These increases were partially offset by a $6.2 million decrease in North American and Asian demand for products in
our instrumentation applications, principally the result of lower demand in the chemical processing, semi-conductor
manufacturing and general industrial markets; and a $1.4 million reduction resulting from changes in exchange rates
affecting our Canadian and European business units. Revenues from aerospace customers were relatively unchanged
as gains early in the year were offset by a reduction in revenues following the September 11t terrorist attacks. The
$16.4 million increase in Petrachemical Products revenues for the year ended December 31, 2001, or 12.3%, was the
result of: $9.4 million in higher North American revenues related to increased customer spending on maintenance and
repair and increased capital project spending in both the oil and gas markets; a $3.1 million increase in revenues from
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our ltalian based operation due to higher shipments of products for large international oil and gas construction projects;
and a $0.6 million increase in revenues from Chinese customers. These increases were partially offset by a $2.7 million
decrease resulting from changes in exchange rates that affected our Canadian and Italian-based operations.

Gross profitincreased $7.7 million, or 8.0%, to $103.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 compared to

$95.8 miltion for the year ended December 31, 2000. Gross margin remained the same at 30.2% for both 2001 and 2000.
Gross profit for the Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Controls Products segment increased $1.1 million as a result of: a
$3.4 million increase from the prior year acquisition of the Rockwood Swendeman product line and the current year
acquisitions of RTK and SART,; partially offset by a net decrease of $1.9 million from lower gross profit from operations.
The Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Controls segment gross profits were negatively affected by the slowdown in the
general industrial market. Despite spending cuts implemented during the year, unabsorbed manufacturing costs
decreased gross profit for this segment. This segment’s gross margin also decreased by $0.4 million due to unfavorable
foreign exchange. Gross profit for the Petrochemical Products segment increased $6.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2001 compared to the year ended December 31, 2000. Gross profit improvement of $7.1 million was
primarily due to: improved operating efficiencies in a key North American manufacturing plant; higher sales volume in a
recovering worldwide oil and gas markets; selective price increases and improved margins in our Italian-based
manufacturing aperation. During the year ended December 31, 2000, bath gross profit and gross margin were negatively
impacted as a result of inefficiencies and delays in the completion of the consolidation and integration of certain
product lines in one of our key North American plants. Gross profits for our Italian-based operation increased in 2001
despite accepting reduced margin contracts that were shipped and recognized in the first quarter. The ltalian plant’s
first quarter competitive pricing strategy, for certain large oil and gas projects, enabled us to demonstrate our
engineering and manufacturing capabilities on the largest size ball valves and qualified us for follow-on application
orders. Unfavorable current year foreign currency exchange rates reduced gross profit for the Petrochemical Products
segment by $0.5 million.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $3.2 million, or 5.0%, to $66.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2001 compared with $63.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2000. Operating expenses for the
Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Controls Products segment increased by $1.5 million. This increase resulted from
$2.1 million incremental current year operating expenses related to the acquisitions of the Rockwood Swendeman
product line and RTX and SART. This increase was partially offset by $0.3 million of operational expense reductions in
our other businesses and $0.3 million lower expenses due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The
Petrochemical Products segment operating expenses increased $0.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2001
compared to the year ended December 31, 2000 primarily the result of $1.0 million of increased variable selling and other
operating expenses, partially offset by a $0.3 million decrease due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates.
Corporate spending increased by $1.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, attributable to higher variable
employee compensation and acquisition search expenses compared to the year ended December 31, 2000.

Goodwill amortization expense increased by $0.2 million to $2.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 compared
to $2.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2000 as a result of the acquisitions of the Rockwood Swendeman
product line and RTK and SART.

Special charges of $0.2 million were incurred in the Petrochemical Products segment for the year ended December 31,
2001, During the year ended December 31, 2000, special charges of $1.9 million were incurred, of which $1.6 million were
incurred in the Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Controls Products segment and $0.3 million in the Petrochemical
Products segment. These special charges were associated with the closure, consolidation and reorganization of certain
U.S. manufacturing operations and were expensed in the periods as incurred.
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The change in operating income for the year ended December 31, 2001 compared to the year ended December 31, 2000
was as follows {In thousands):

Total Foreign
Segment 2001 2000 Change Acquisitions Operations Exchange
Instrumentation & Thermal Fluid Controls ... ... $32,158 $31,211 $ 947 $1,257 $ (196) $(114)
Petrochemical ............................ 9,194 3137 8,057 - 6,246 (189)
Corporate ........c.oiiiiiieiii i, (7,735)  (6,712) {1,023} - (1,023) -
Total o $33,617 $27,636 $5,981 $1,257 $5,027 $(303)

Operating income increased $8.0 million, or 21.6%, to $33.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 compared to
$27.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2000. Operating income in the Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Controls
Products segmentincreased $0.9 million primarily attributable to improved manufacturing and administrative operating
efficiencies and the absence of special charges in the current year, partially offset by the unfavorable impact of
unabsorbed manufacturing costs. The $6.1 million increase in operating income in the Petrochemical Products segment
was primarily the result of additional gross profits due to: higher current year sales volume; selective price increases;
and manufacturing process improvements and efficiencies. Corporate spending increased by $1.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2001 compared to the year ended December 31, 2000.

Net interest expense decreased approximately $2.2 million to $7.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2001
compared to $3.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2000. The decrease was due to: lower average debt balances
outstanding; lower average interest rates on variable rate debt; and an increase in current year interest income on
invested balances. Significant net positive cash flow generated during our prior year enabled us to reduce our revolving
line of credit debt balance to zero as of December 31, 2000. Proceeds from our equity offering in March 2001 were used
to: payoff first quarter borrowings from our unsecured revolving line of credit; fund our June 2001 acquisitions; reduce
outstanding debt balances of acquired companies; and generate interest income on invested balances.

Other expense decreased $0.2 million to $0.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, compared to $0.8 million for
the year ended December 31, 2000, primarily as a result of reductions in net losses from foreign currency exchange rate
changes.

The effective tax rate remained the same at 40.0% for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000.

Net income increased $5.0 mitlion, or 47.7%, to $15.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 compared to

$10.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2000. Improved operating results within the Petrochemical Products
segment, iower special charges in the current year and reduced net interest expenses were the primary reasons for this
change.

Liguidity and Capital Resources

The following table summarizes our cash flow activities for the periods indicated {In thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,
2002 2001

Cash flow from:

Operating @CtiVIties ... v e e $ 24,925 $ 44,847

NVeStINg ACHIVItIES . . .ot {23,241) {14,501)

Financing aCtiVities ..ottt e e (20,504) 18,618

Effect of exchange rates on cash balances ........ ... . i i i i 192 (146}
increase (decrease) in cash and cashequivalents ......... .. ... ... ... .. ...l $(18,628)  $ 48,818
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During the year ended December 31, 2002, we generated $24.9 million in cash flow from operating activities. Netincome
plus non-cash charges, such as depreciation, amortization, losses on the disposal and write-off of property, plant and
equipment and the change in deferred taxes, accounted for $29.7 million of operating cash flows. Increases in working
capital used $4.8 million of operating cash, and consisted of: a decrease in trade accounts receivable of $6.7 million, an
increase in inventories of $4.3 million, an increase in prepaid expenses and other assets of $2.4 million, and a decrease in
accounts payable accrued expenses and other liabilities of $4.9 million. The $23.2 million used for investing activities
included: a net $18.9 million used for acquisition activities that included $17.6 million for the purchases of Tomco and U.S.
Para Plate, approximately $2.5 million for the purchase of the remaining 25% minarity interest in our RTK subsidiary, a
$0.1 million reduction in purchase price relating to the acquisition of SART, and $1.1 million in purchase price adjustments
relating to our prior acquisitions of Leslie Controls, Inc. and Hoke, Inc.; $4.4 million for the purchase of capital equipment,
partially offset by the receipt of $0.1 million in proceeds from the disposal of equipment. We used $20.5 million for financing
activities that included: a net $20.6 million reduction of our long-term debt, $2.3 milfion to pay dividends to shareholders;
offset by $2.4 million in cash received from the exercise of stock options and the conversion of restricted stock units. The
effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents increased cash balances by $0.2 million.

We have $4.1 million of marketable securities that are designated as available for sale and readily convertible to cash
should the need for additional working capital arise.

Our capital expenditure budget for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2003 is $8.0 million. Capital expenditures are
primarily for machinery and equipment as part of our ongoing commitment to further improve our manufacturing
operations and to manufacture new products.

The ratio of current assets to current liabilities as of December 31, 2002 was 3.2:1 compared to 3.4:1 as of December 31,
2001. Cash and cash equivalents were $38.4 million as of December 31, 2002 compared to $57.0 million as of

December 31, 2001. Net debt (total debt less cash and marketable securities) as a percentage of total net capital (net
debt plus equity) employed was 12.7% as of December 31, 2002 compared to 15.5% as of December 31, 2001.

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, we had no amounts outstanding under our corporate unsecured revolving credit
facility. On December 4, 2002, we refinanced this credit facility by entering into an amendment to the original credit
agreement that extends the term of the credit facility to December 2006. The amendment to the credit agreement aiso
provides us with an option to increase the line to $100 million, subject to leverage and certain other conditions. In
accordance with the credit facility agreement, the rate of interest and facility fees we are charged vary based upon
changes in our net debt leverage ratio. We can borrow at either the Euro dollar rate plus an applicable margin of 0.625%
to 1.625%, or at a base rate plus an applicable margin of 0% to 0.25%. The base rate for any day is the higher of the
federal funds rate plus 2 of 1% or the lender’s prime rate. We are also required to pay an unused facility fee that can
range from 0.15% to 0.35% per annum, and a utilization fee of 0.125% per annum if our borrowings exceed 50% of the
credit facility limit. As of December 31, 2002, we had $75.0 million available under the revolving credit facility to support
our acquisition program, working capital requirements and general corparate purposes.

Certain of our loan agreements contain covenants that require, among other items, maintenance of certain financial
ratios and also limit our ability to: enter into secured and unsecured borrowing arrangements; issue dividends to
shareholders; acquire and dispose of businesses; invest in capital equipment; participate in certain higher yielding fong-
term investment vehicles; and issue additional shares of aur stock. We were in compliance with all covenants related to
our existing debt obligations at December 31, 2002 and 2001.

On February 5, 2002, the minority interest shareholder of RTK exercised the put option rights granted in the purchase
agreement, thereby electing to sell us the remaining 25% interest in RTK. Accordingly, we disbursed an additional
$2.5 million during the first quarter of 2002 for the purchase of this 25% interest in RTK.

On April 9, 2002, we filed a registration statement on Form S-3. The registration statement, which was amended and filed
on June 6, 2002, relates to the sale of up to an aggregate of 1.0 million shares of common stock currently outstanding
and beneficially owned by Timothy P. Horne and other members of the Horne family. We wili not receive any of the
proceeds from the sale of the shares of our common stock offered by this prospectus. We paid the preparation and filing
expenses for the registration statement for these shares.
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During August 2002, we paid down the remaining outstanding $3.5 million of debt that had been assumed as a part of our
purchase of RTK. As a result of pre-paying these debt balances, we also incurred and paid an additional $0.1 million in
bank fees.

In October 2002, we purchased Tomco and U.S. Para Plate for $17.6 million in ¢cash, net of cash acquired, and assumed
$0.7 million in debt and $4.0 million of marketable securities at fair market value. We also deposited an additional

$2.3 million into separate escrow accounts for the benefit of the sellers, subject to any such claims by us as are allowed
in accordance with the purchase agreements. Any funds remaining in the escrow funds at the conclusion of the
contingency periods will be distributed to the sellers and accounted for as additional purchase cost.

Beginning on Octaber 18, 2002, we commenced making $15.0 million annual payments, in accordance with the note
agreement, to reduce the $75.0 million outstanding balance of our unsecured 8.23% senior notes, which mature in
October 2006.

During November 2002, we contributed an additional $3.0 million into our pension plan trust, increasing the tevel of
current year contributions to $5.7 million. This additional contribution was made to increase plan assets to a level that
was equivalent to the accumulated benefit obligations as of December 31, 2002.

From time-to-time, we are involved with product liability, environmental and other litigation proceedings and incur costs
on an ongoing basis related to these matters. We have not incurred material expenditures during the year ended
December 31, 2002 in connection with any of these matters.

The following table summarizes our significant contractual obligations and commercial commitments at December 31,
2002 that affect our liquidity (In thousands):

Payments due by Period
Less Than 1-3 4-5
Total i Vear Years Vears Thereafter

Contractua! Cash Qbligations:
Notespayable .......c. i $3166 $3166 $ - 8§ - § -
Current portion of long-termdebt. .......................... 15,430 15,430 - - -
Total short-term borrowings ...........cov it 18,596 18,596 - - -
Long-term debt, less currentportion .................c..o.eu 59,394 - 31,418 22,814 5,162
Operating leases ........vr i 16,097 3,249 5284 4374 3,190
Total contractual cash obfigations . ......................... $94,087 $21,845 $36,702 $27,188  $8,352
Other Commercial Commitments:
U.S. standby lettersof credit ............. ..., $2045 $180 $ - $§ - $ 165
International standby letters of credit ....................... 4,103 1,930 1,843 330 -
Commercial contract commitments . ........................ 2,543 1,290 949 287 17
Total commercial commitments ................coiiniinn $8691 §5100 $2792 § 617 $ 182

We anticipate that available cash balances, marketable securities that are readily convertible to cash and those funds
provided from ongoing operations will be sufficient to meet current operating requirements, anticipated capital
expenditures, scheduled debt payments and contingencies for at least the next 24 months.

Effects of Recent Accounting Pronouncements

We adopted FASB Statement No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” on January 1, 2002. See note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements contained in Item 8 for further information concerning our adoption of Statement

No. 142,

We also adopted FASB Statement No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” ("Statement
No. 144") on January 1, 2002. Statement No. 144 refines existing impairment accounting guidance and extends the use of
accounting for discontinued operations to both reporting segments and distinguishable components thereof. Statement
No. 144 also eliminates the existing exception to consolidation of a subsidiary for which control is likely to be temporary.
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The adoption of Statement No. 144 did not have a material impact on our consalidated results of operations or financial
position.

In April 2002, FASB Statement No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statement Nos. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement
No. 13, and Technical Corrections,” (“Statement No. 145“), was issued effective for fiscal years beginning May 15, 2002
or later. Statement No. 145 rescinds Statement No. 4, “Reporting Gains and Losses from the Extinguishment of Debt,”
Statement No. 44, "Accounting for Intangible Assets of Motor Carriers” and Statement No. 64, “Extinguishments of Debt
Made to Satisfy Sinking-Fund Requirements.” Statement No. 145 also amends Statement No. 13, “Accounting For
Leases,” to eliminate an inconsistency between the required accounting for sale-leaseback transactions and for certain
transactions that have economic effects that are similar to sale-leaseback transactions. This statement also amends
other existing authoritative pronouncements to make various technical corrections, clarify meaning or describe their
applicability under changed conditions. We adopted the provisions of Statement No. 145 effective April 1, 2002, and the
adoption had no impact on our reported results of operations or financial position.

In July 2002, FASB Statement No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated With Exit or Disposal Activities,” (“Statement
No. 146"), was issued. Statement No. 148 requires companies to recognize costs associated with exit or disposal
activities when they are incurred rather than at the date of a commitment to an exit or disposal plan. This statement is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2002. We do not believe the impact of adopting Statement No. 146
will have a material impact on our reported results of operation or financial position.

in December 2002, FASB Statement No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure-An
Amendment of SFAS No. 123, (“Statement No. 148"), was issued. Statement No. 148 amends Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“Statement Nao. 123"}, to provide alternative
methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair-value-based method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation that measures the associated compensation cost on the date of the award and recognizes the expense over
the service period. In addition, this Statement amends the disclosure requirements of Statement No. 123 to require
prominent disclosures in not only annual, but also interim financial statements about the effect the fair value method would
have had on reported results. The transition and annual disclosure requirements of Statement No. 148 are effective for
fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002. We have adopted the annual disclosure provisions of Statement No. 148 in the
consclidated financial statements contained in item 8. The interim disclosure requirements are effective for interim periods
beginning after December 15, 2002. We have chosen to continue to account for stock-based compensation for employees
using the intrinsic method prescribed in APB No.25. The method does not result in recording an associated expense in our
results of operations until the options are exercised.

FASB Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect
Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others, an Interpretation of FASB No. 5, 57, and 107 and Rescission of FASB
Interpretation No. 34,” {(“FIN No. 45”) was issued in November 2002. FIN No. 45 elaborates on the disclosures to be made
by a guarantor and clarifies requirements relating to the guarantor’s accounting for, and disclosure of, the issuance of
certain types of guarantees. FIN No. 45 requires that upon issuance of a guarantee, companies recognize a liability for
the fair value of the obligation it assumes under that guarantee. We have adopted the annual disclosure provisions of
FIN No. 45 in the consolidated financial statements contained in item 8. We will adopt the provisions for initial
recognition and measurement and interim disclosures during the first quarter of 2003. We do offer warranties, but the
returns under warranty have been immaterial. We have notissued any guarantees other than for stand-by letters of
credit used in the ordinary course of conducting our business. The adoption of FIN No. 45 is not expected to have a
material effect on the consalidated financial statements.

In January 2003, FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB No. 51,”
{“FIN No. 46"} was issued. FIN No. 46 requires certain variable interest entities to be consolidated by the primary
beneficiary of the entity if the equity investors in the entity do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial
interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated
financial support from other parties. FIN No. 46 is effective for all new variable interest entities created or acquired after
January 31, 2003. For variable interest entities created or acquired prior to February 1, 2003, the provisions of FIN No. 46
must be applied for the first interim or annual period beginning after June 15, 2003. We have no variable interest entities
at this time, and as such, the adoption of FIN No. 46 will not have an effect on the consolidated financial statements.
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CERTAIN RISK FACTGRS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

Set forth below are certain risk factors that we believe are material to our stockholders. If any of the following risks
occur, our business, financial condition, results of operations, and reputation could be harmed. You should also consider
these risk factors when you read “forward-looking statements” elsewhere in this report. You can identify forward-
looking statements by terms such as “may, ) i -4

i

hope,” “will,” “should,” “expect,” “plan,” “anticipate,” “intend,”
“believe,” “estimate,” “predict,” or “continue,” the negative of those terms or other comparable terminology. Those
forward-looking statements are only predictions and can be adversely affected if any of the following risks occur:

Some of our end-markets are cyclical, which may cause us to experience fluctuations in revenues or operating
rastlis.

We have experienced, and expect to continue to experience, fluctuations in revenues and operating results due to
economic and business cycles. We sell our products principally to oil, gas, petrochemical, process, power, aerospace,
military, heating, ventilation and air canditioning, or HVAC, maritime, pharmaceutical, medical and instrumentation
markets. Although we serve a variety of markets to avoid a dependency on any one, a significant downturn in any one of
these markets could cause a material reduction in our revenues that could be difficult to offset.

In particular, our petrochemical business is cyclical in nature as the worldwide demand for oil and gas fluctuates. When
worldwide demand for oil and gas is depressed, the demand for our products used in maintenance and repair of existing
oil and gas applications, as well as exploration or new oil and gas project applications, is reduced. As a result, we
historically have generated lower revenues and profits in periods of declining demand for petrochemical products.
Therefore, results of operations for any particular period are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations for
any future period. Future downturns in demand for petrochemical products could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition or results of operations. Similarly, although not to the same extent as the oil and gas
markets, the aerospace, military and maritime markets have historically experienced cyclical fluctuations in demand
that also could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

We face the continuing impact on economic and financial conditiens in the United States and around the worid as a
result of the September 11t terrorist attacks and related matters, as well as current tensions in rag and the rest of the
Middle East.

The terrorist attacks have negatively impacted general economic, market and political conditions. In particular, the
terrorist attacks, compounded with the slowing national economy, have resulted in reduced revenues in the aerospace
and general industrial markets in fiscal year 2002. Additional terrorist acts or acts of war (wherever [ocated around the
world) may cause damage or disruption to our business, our facilities, our joint-venture partners or our employees
which could significantly impact our business, financial condition or results of operations. The potential for future
terrorist attacks, the national and international responses to terrorist attacks, and other acts of war or hostility, including
the current tensions in Irag and the Middle East, have created many economic and political uncertainties, which could
adversely affect our business and results of operations in ways that cannot presently be predicted. In addition, with
manufacturing facilities located worldwide, including facilities located in the United States, Canada, Western Europe
and the People’s Republic of China, we may be impacted by terrorist actions not only against the United States butin
other parts of the world as well. We are predominately uninsured for losses and interruptions caused by terrorist acts
and acts of war.

If we cannot continue operating our manufacturing facilities at current or higher levels, our results of operations could
be adversely affected. ‘
We operate a number of manufacturing facilities for the production of our products. The equipment and management
systems necessary for such operations may break down, perform poorly, or fail, resulting in fluctuations in
manufacturing efficiencies. Such fluctuations may affect our ability to deliver products to our customers on a timely
basis, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.
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We face significant competition in our markets and, if we are not able to respond to competition in our markets, our
revenues may decrease.

We face significant competition from a variety of competitors in each of our markets. Some of our competitors have
substantially greater financial, marketing, personnel and other resources than we do. New competitors also could enter
our markets. We consider product quality, performance, price, distribution capabilities and breadth of product offerings
to be the primary competitive factors in our markets. Qur competitors may be able to offer more attractive pricing,
duplicate our strategies, or develop enhancements to products that could offer performance features that are superior
to our products. Competitive pressures, including those described above, and other factors could adversely affect our
competitive pasition, involving a loss of market share or decreases in prices, either of which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations. In addition, some of our competitors are
based in foreign countries and have cost structures and prices based on foreign currencies. Accordingly, currency
fluctuations could cause our U.S. dollar-priced products to be less competitive than our competitors’ products that are
priced in other currencies.

if we experience delays in introducing new products or if our existing or new products do not achieve or maintain
market acceptance, our revenues may decrease.

Ourindustries are characterized by intense competition; changes in end-user requirements; technically complex
products; and evolving product offerings and introductions.

We believe our future success will depend, in part, on our ability to anticipate or adapt to these factors and to offer,on a
timely basis, products that meet customer demands. Failure to develop new and innovative products or to custom design
existing products could resultin the loss of existing customers to competitors or the inability to attract new business,
either of which may adversely affect our revenues. The development of new or enhanced products is a complex and
uncertain process requiring the anticipation of technological and market trends. We may experience design,
manufacturing, marketing or other difficulties, such as an inability to attract a sufficient number of qualified engineers,
that coulid delay or prevent our development, introduction or marketing of new products or enhancements and resultin
unexpected expenses.

Implementation of cur acquisition strategy may not be successful, which could affect our ability to increase our
revenues or couid reduce our profitability.

One of our continued strategies is to increase our revenues and expand our markets through acquisitions that wilt
provide us with complementary instrumentation and thermal fluid controls and petrochemical products. We expect to
spend significant time and effort in expanding our existing businesses and identifying, completing and integrating
acquisitions. We expect to face competition for acquisition candidates that may limit the number of acquisition
opportunities available to us and may resultin higher acquisition prices. We cannot be certain that we will be able to
identify, acquire or profitably manage additional companies or successfully integrate such additional companies without
substantial costs, delays or other problems. Alsg, there can be no assurance that companies we acquire in the future
will achieve revenues, profitability or cash flows that justify our investment in them. In addition, acquisitions may involve
a number of special risks, including: adverse short-term effects on our reported operating results; diversion of
management's attention; loss of key personnel at acquired companies; or unanticipated management or operational
problems or legai liabilities. Some or all of these special risks could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition or results of operations.

if we fail to manufacture and deliver high quality preducts, we may lose customers.

Product quality and performance are a priority for our customers since many of our product applications involve caustic
or volatile chemicals and, in many cases, involve processes that require precise control of fluids. Our products also are
used in the aerospace, military, commercial aircraft, pharmaceutical, medical, analytical equipment, oil and gas
exploration, transmission and refining, chemical processing, and maritime industries. These industries require products
that meet stringent performance and safety standards. If we fail to maintain and enforce quality contro! and testing
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procedures, our products will not meet these stringent performance and safety standards. Substandard products would
seriously harm cur reputation, resulting in both a loss of current customers to our competitors and damage to our ability
to attract new customers, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of
operations.

If we are unable to continue operating successfully overseas of to successfully expand inte new international
markets, our revenues may decrease.

We derive a significant portion of our revenue from sales outside the United States. in addition, one of our key growth
strategies is to market our products in international markets not currently served by us in portions of Europe, Latin
America and Asia. We may not succeed in marketing, selling and distributing our preducts in these new markets.
Moreover, conducting business outside the United States is subject to additional risks, including currency exchange
rate fluctuations, changes in regional, political or economic conditions, trade protection measures such as tariffs or
import or export restrictions, and unexpected changes in regulatory requirements. One or more of these factors could
prevent us from successfully expanding into new international markets and could also have a material adverse effect on
our current international operations.

Prices of our raw materials may increase which may adverssly affect our business.

We obtain our raw materials for the manufacture of our products from third-party suppliers. We do not have contracts
with many of these suppliers that require them to sell us the materials we need to manufacture our products.
Historically, stainless steel, iron and carbon steel, in particular, have each increased in price as a result of increases in
demand. While in the past we have not experienced difficulties in obtaining the raw materials we require (including
stainless steel, castiron and carbon steel), we cannot be certain that our suppliers will continue to provide us with the
raw materials we need in the quantities requested or at a price we are willing to pay. In the past we have been able to
partially offset increases in the cost of raw materials by increased sales prices, active materials management, product
engineering programs and the diversity of materials used in our production processes. However, we cannot be certain
that we will be able to accomplish this in the future. Since we do not control the actual production of these raw
materials, we may also be subject to delays caused by interruption in production of materials for reasons we cannot
control. These include job actions or strikes by employees of suppliers, transportation interruptions and natural
disasters or other catastrophic events. Qur inability to obtain adequate supplies of raw materials for our products at
favorable prices, or at all, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of
operations.

A change in international governmental policies or restrictions could result in decreased availahility and increased
costs for certain components and finished products that we cutsource, which could adversely affect our profitability.

Like most manufacturers of fluid control products, we attempt, where appropriate, to reduce costs by seeking lower
cost sources of certain components and finished products. Many such sources are located in developing countries
such as the People’s Republic of China, India and Taiwan where a change in governmental approach toward U.S. trade
could restrict the availability to us of such sources. In addition, periods of war or other international tension could
interfere with international freight operations and hinder our ability to take delivery of such components and products. A
decrease in the availability of these items could hinder our ability to meet timely our customers’ orders. We attempt,
when possible, to mitigate this risk by maintaining alternate sources for these components and products and by
maintaining the capahility to produce such items in our own manufacturing facilities. However, even when we are able
to mitigate this risk, the cost of obtaining such items from alternate sources or producing them ourselves is often
considerably greater, and a shift toward such higher cost production could therefore adversely affect our profitability.

The costs of complying with existing or future environmental regulations, and of curing any vietations of these
regulations, could increase our expenses or reduce our profitability.

We are subject to a variety of environmental laws relating to the storage, discharge, handling, emission, generation, use
and disposal of chemicals, solid and hazardous waste and other toxic and hazardous materials used to manufacture, or
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resulting from the process of manufacturing, our products. We cannot predict the nature, scope or effect of future
regulatory requirements to which our operations might be subject or the manner in which existing or future laws will be
administered or interpreted. Future regulations could be applied to materials, products or activities that have not been
subject to regulation previously. The costs of complying with new or more stringent regulations, or with more vigorous
enforcement of these or existing regulations could be significant.

Environmental laws require us to maintain and comply with a number of permits, authorizations and approvals and to
maintain and update training programs and safety data regarding materials used in our processes. Violations of these
requirements could result in financial penalties and other enforcement actions. We also could be required to halt one or
more portions of our operations until a violation is cured. Although we attempt to operate in compliance with these
environmental laws, we may not succeed in this effort at all times. The costs of curing violations or resolving
enforcement actions that might be initiated by government authorities could be substantial.

The costs of complying with existing or future governmental regulations applicable to cur importing and experting
practices, and of curing any violations of these regulations, could increase our expenses, reduce our reyenues or
reduce our profitability.

We are subject to a variety of laws regarding our international trade practices including regulations issued by the
United States Customs Service, the Bureau of Export Administration, the Department of State, and the Department of
Treasury. We cannot predict the nature, scope or effect of future regulatory requirements to which our international
trading practices might be subject or the manner in which existing laws might be administered or interpreted. Future
regulations could limit the countries into which certain of our products may be sold or could restrict our access to and
increase the cost of obtaining products from foreign sources. In addition, actual or alleged violations of import-export
laws could result in enforcement actions and/or financial penalties that could result in substantial costs.

We face risks from preduct liability lawsuits that may adversely affect our business.

We, like other manufacturers and distributors of products designed to control and regulate fluids and chemicals, face an
inherent risk of exposure to product liability claims in the event that the use of our products results in personal injury,
property damage or business interruption to our customers. We may be subjected to various product liability claims,
including, among others, that our products include inadequate or improper instructions for use or installation, or
inadequate warnings concerning the effects of the failure of our products. Although we maintain strict quality controls
and procedures, including the testing of raw materials and safety testing of selected finished products, we cannot be
certain that our products will be completely free from defect. In addition, in certain cases, we rely on third-party
manufacturers for our products or components of our products. Although we have liability insurance coverage, we
cannot be certain that this insurance coverage will continue to be available to us at a reasonable cost, or, if available,
will be adequate to cover any such liabilities. We generally seek to obtain contractual indemnification froam our third-
party suppliers, and for us to be added as an additional insured party under such parties’ insurance policies. Any such
indemnification or insurance is limited by its terms and, as a practical matter, is limited to the credit worthiness of the
indemnifying or insuring party. In the event that we do not have adequate insurance or contractual indemnification,
product liabilities could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

The costs associated with the defense of ashestos-related claims and the payment of any judgments or settiements
with respect to such claims are subject to a number of uncertainties. As such, we cannot guarantee that such claims
ultimately will not have an adverse &ffect on our financial statements, results of operations or cash flows.

Like many other manufacturers of fluid control products, we have been named as defendants in a growing number of
product liability actions brought on behalf of individuals who seek compensation for their alleged exposure to airborne
asbestos fibers. In general, any components containing ashestos formerly used in our products were entirely internal to
the product and, we believe, would not give rise to ambient asbestos dust during normal operation. As such, we believe
that we have minimal, if any, liability with respect to the vast majority of these cases and that these cases, in the
aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, resuits of operations or cash flows.
However, due to the nature and number of variables associated with asbestos related claims, such as the rate at which
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new claims may be filed; the availability of insurance policies to continue to recover certain of our costs relating to the
defense and payment of these claims; the impact of bankruptcies of other companies currently or historically defending
asbestos claims; the uncertainties surrounding the litigation process from jurisdiction to jurisdiction and from case to
case; the impact of potential changes in legislative or judicial standards; the type and severity of the disease alleged to
be suffered by each claimant; and increases in the expense of medical treatment, we are unable to reliably estimate the
ultimate costs of these claims.

We may be responsible for certain historical liabilities in the event Watts and its affiliates are ultimately unable to
satisfy such liabilities.

Until the spin-off, we were a member of Watts' consolidated group for federal income tax purposes. Each member of the
consolidated group is liable for the federal income tax liability of the other members of the group, as well as for pension
and benefit funding liabilities of the other group members. Under federal faw we continue to be contingently liable for
these Watts consolidated group liabilities for periods beginning before the spin-off.

We entered into a distribution agreement with Watts that allocates tax, pension and benefit funding liabilities between
Watts and us. Under this agreement, Watts maintains full control and absolute discretion with regard to any combined
or consolidated United States federal and state tax filings for periods through the spin-off date. Watts also maintains full
control and absolute discretion regarding common tax audit issues of such entities. These arrangements may result in
conflicts of interest with Watts. In addition, if Watts is ultimately unable to satisfy its liabilities, we could be responsible
for satisfying them, despite the distribution agreement.

We would be jointly and severally liable for Watts’ federal income taxes resulting from the spin-off if the Internal
Revenue Service, or IRS, treats the spin-off as & taxable distribution.

At the time of the spin-off, Watts received a ruling from the IRS to the effect that, for United States federal income tax
purposes, the spin-off would be tax-free to Watts and its shareholders. If the undertakings made to the IRS regarding
the spin-off are not complied with or if representations made to the IRS regarding the spin-off were inaccurate, we
could lose the benefit of the IRS tax ruling and the IRS could assert that the spin-off was a taxable distribution. In that
case, under United States federal income tax law, we would be jointly and severally liable with Watts for a material
amount of federal income tax. In our distribution agreement with Watts, we agreed that we will be wholly responsible
for that tax if it results from our act or omission, and Watts will be wholly responsible for that tax if it results from Watts
act or omission. Under federal income tax law, however, we would be required to pay that tax if Watts was unable to,
regardless of the distribution agreement.

We depend on our key personnel and the loss of their services may adversely affect our business.

We believe that our success will depend on the continued employment of our senior management team and other key
personnel. If one or more members of our senior management team or other key personnel were unable or unwilling to
continue in their present positions, our business could be seriously harmed. In addition, if any of our key personnel joins
a competitor or forms a competing company, some of our customers might choose to use the services of that competitor
or those of a new company instead of our own. Other companies seeking to develop capabilities and products similar to
ours may hire away some of our key personnel. Nonetheless, if we are unahle to maintain our key personnel and attract
new employees, the execution of our business strategy may he hindered and our growth limited.

Various restrictions and agreements could hinder a takeover of us which is not supported by our board of directors or
which is leveraged.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated by-laws, the Delaware General
Corparation Law and our shareholder rights plan contain provisions that could delay or prevent a change in controlin a
transaction that is not approved by our board of directors or that is on a leveraged basis or otherwise. These include
provisions creating a staggered board, limiting the shareholders’ powers to remove directors, and prohibiting
shareholders from calling a special meeting or taking action by written consent in lieu of a shareholders” meeting. In
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addition, our board of directors has the authority, without further action by the shareholders, to set the terms of and to
issue preferred stock. Issuing preferred stock could adversely affect the voting power of the owners of our common
stock, including the loss of voting control to others. Additionally, we have adapted a shareholder rights plan providing
for the issuance of rights that will cause substantial dilution to a person or group of persons that acquires 15% or more
of our shares of common stock, unless the rights are redeemed.

Delaying or preventing a takeover could resultin our shareholders ultimately receiving less for their shares by deterring
potential bidders for our stock or assets,

Our deht agreements limit our ability to issue equity, male acquisitions, incur debt, pay dividends, make investments,
seil assets, merge or raise capital.

Qur senior note purchase agreement, dated October 19, 1999, and our revolving credit facility agreement, dated

October 19, 1999 and most recently amended on December 4, 2002, govern our indebtedness to our lenders. The debt
agreements include provisions which place limitations on certain activities including our ability to: issue shares of our
common stock; incur additional indebtedness; create any liens or encumbrances on our assets or make any guarantees;
make certain investments; pay cash dividends above certain limits; or dispose of or sell assets or enter into a merger or
a similar transaction. : '

The trading price of our common stock may be volatile and investors in our common stock may experience substantial
fosses.

The trading price of our common stock may be volatile. Our common stock could decline or fluctuate in response to a
variety of factors, including, but not limited to: our failure to meet the performance estimates of securities analysts;
changes in financial estimates of our revenues and operating results or buy/sell recommendations by securities
analysts; the timing of announcements by us or our competitors concerning significant product line developments,
contracts or acquisitions or publicity regarding actual or potential results or performance; fluctuation in our quarterly
operating results caused by fluctuations in revenue and expenses; substantial sales of our common stock by our
existing shareholders; general stock market conditions; or other economic or external factars.

In addition, the stock market as a whole has recently experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations. In the past,
securities class action litigation has often been instituted against companies following periods of volatility in the market
price of their securities. This type of litigation could result in substantial costs and a diversion of management attention
and resources.

Our international activities expose us to fluctuations in currency exchange rates that could adversely effect our
results of operations and cash flows.

Our international manufacturing and sales activities expose us changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Such
fluctuations could result in our (i) paying higher prices for certain imported goods and services, {ii) realizing lower prices
for any sales denominated in currencies other than U.S. dollars, {iii) realizing lower netincome, on a U.S. dollar basis,
from our international operations due to the effects of translation from weakened functional currencies, and

(iv) realizing higher costs to settle transactions denominated in other currencies. Any of these risks could adversely
effect our results of operations and cash flows. Our major foreign currency exposures involve the markets in Western
Europe, Canada and Asia.

We use forward contracts to manage the currency risk related to business transactions denominated in foreign
currencies. We primarily utilize forward exchange contracts with maturities of less than eighteen months. To the extent
these transactions are completed, the contracts do not subject us to significant risk from exchange rate fluctuations
because they offset gains and losses on the related foreign currency denominated transactions.
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[TEM 72, QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Marlket Risk

The oil and gas markets historically have been subject to cyclicality depending upon supply and demand for crude oil, its
derivatives and natural gas. When oil or gas prices decrease, expenditures on maintenance and repair decline rapidly
and outlays for exploration and in-field drilling projects decrease and, accordingly, demand for valve products is
reduced. However, when oil and gas prices rise, maintenance and repair activity and spending for facilities projects
normally increase, and we benefit from increased demand for valve products. However, oil or gas price‘increases may
be considered temporary in nature, or not driven by customer demand and, therefore, may result in longer lead times for
increases in petrochemical sales orders. As a result, the timing and magnitude of changes in market demand for cil and
gas valve products are difficult to predict. Similarly, although not to the same extent as the oil and gas markets, the
aerospace, military and maritime markets have historically experienced cyclical fluctuations in demand that also could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Risk

As of December 31, 2002, our primary interest rate risk is related to borrowings under our revolving credit facility and our
industrial revenue bonds. The interest rates for our revolving credit facility and industrial revenue bonds fluctuate with
changes in short-term borrowing rates. There were no borrowings under our revolving credit facility outstanding as of
December 31, 2002. Based upon expected levels of borrowings under our credit facility in 2003 and our current bafances
for industria! revenue bonds, an increase in variable interest rates of 100 basis points would not have a materia! effect
on our results of operations or cash flows.

Currency Exchange Risk

We use forward contracts to manage the currency risk related to business transactions denominated in foreign
currencies. Related gains and losses are recognized when the contracts expire, which are generally in the same period
as the underlying foreign currency denominated transactions. To the extent these transactions are completed, the
contracts do not subject us to significant risk from exchange rate movements because they offset gains and losses on
the related foreign currency denominated transactions. As of December 31, 2002, we had forward contracts to buy
foreign currencies with a face value of $1.0 million. These contracts mature on various dates between January and
Viarch 2003. Net unrealized gains attributable to foreign currency forward contracts were less than $0.1 million at
December 31, 2002 and $0.1 million at December 31, 2001. The counterparties to these contracts are major financia!
institutions. Our risk of loss in the event of non-performance by the counterparties is nat significant.

We do nat use derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. Risk management strategies are reviewed and
approved by senior management before implementation.

Commodity Price Risk

The primary raw materials used in our production process are staintess steel, carbon steel, castiron and brass. We
purchase these materials from numerous suppliers nationally and internationally, and have not historically experienced
significant difficulties in obtaining these commaodities in quantities sufficient for our operations. However, these
commadities are subject to price fluctuations that may adversely affect our results of operations. We manage this risk
by offsetting increases in commodities with increased sales prices, active materials management, product engineering
programs and the diversity of materials used in our production processes.
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[TEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

CIRCOR INTERNATIONAL, INC
Index to Consolidated Financial Statements

Page
Independent Auditors RepPOrt L. o . e e 4
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,2002 and 2001 .............c. it iiiiii i, 42
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31,2002, 2001 and 2000 ................ 43
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31,2002, 200t and 2000 ................ 44
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 ... ... .. 45
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ......... ... . . i i i i e 48

ITEM 9. CHANGES (M AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AKD
FIMANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information appearing under the sections “Information Regarding Directors” and “Information Regarding Executive
Officers” in our Definitive Proxy Statement relating to the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on April 24, 2003 is
incorporated herein by reference.

TTERE 9. EXECUTIVE CORPEMSATION

The information appearing under the section “Executive Compensation” in our Definitive Proxy Statement relating to the
Annual Meeting of Staockholders to be held April 24, 2003 is incarporated herein by reference.

ITEM 92. SECURITY OWNERSHIP CF CERTAIN BEMEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information appearing under the section "Security Ownership of CIRCOR Common Stock by Certain Beneficial
Owners, Directors and Executive Officers of the Company” in our Definitive Proxy Statement relating to the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be held April 24, 2003 is incorporated herein by reference.

[TERM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTION

The information appearing under the section “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” in our Definitive Proxy
Statement relating to the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held April 24, 2003 is incorporated herein by reference.

ITERD 14. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
{(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures.

As required by new Rule 13a-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 {the “Exchange Act”), within the 90 days
prior to the date of this report, we carried out an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of our
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures. Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded that our disciosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and
forms. We will continue 1o review and document our disclosure controls and procedures and consider such changes, as
we may deem advisable based on future evaluations of the effectiveness of such controls and procedures
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(b} Changes ininternal controls.

There have beer no significant changes in internal controls, or in factors that could significantly affect internal controls,
subsequent to the date the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer completed their evaluation. From time-to
time, we may make changes in our system of internal controls aimed at enhancing their effectiveness and to ensure that
our systems evolve with our business.

PART iV
[TEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPCRTS ON FORM 8-K
{al{1) Financial Statements

The financial statements filed as part of the report are listed in Part 11, Item 8 of this report on the Index to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

{e){2) Financial Statement Schedules

Page
Schedule | Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 70
All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the Security and Exchange
Commission are not required under the related instructions or are not material, and therefore have been omitted.
(2){3) Exhibits
Exhibit .
No. Description and Location

2 Pian of Acquisition, Reorganization, Arrangement, Liquidation or Succession:

21 Distribution Agreement between Watts Industries, Inc. and CIRCOR International, Inc. dated as of October 1,
1999, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Amendment No. 2 to CIRCOR International, Inc.’s
Registration Statement on Form 10, File No. 000-26961, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
October 6, 1999 (“Amendment No. 2 to the Form 10”).

3 Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws:

3.1 The Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of CIRCOR International, Inc. is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to CIRCOR International, Inc.’s Registration Statement an Form 10, File No. 000-26961,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August §, 1939 (“Form 10").

3.2 The Amended and Restated By-Laws of CIRCOR International, Inc. are incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 to the Form 10.

3.3 Certificate of Designations, Preferences and Rights of a Series of Preferred Stock of CIRCOR International,
Inc. classifying and designating the Series A Junior Participating Cumulative Preferred Stock is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to CIRCOR International, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A, File
No. 001-14962, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 21, 1999 {(“Form 8-A”).

4 Instruments Defining the Rights of Security Holders, Including Debentures:

41 Shareholder Rights Agreement, dated as of September 16, 1999, between CIRCOR International, inc. and

BankBoston, N.A., as Rights Agent is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Form 8-A.
*4.2 Agreement of Substitution and Amendment of Shareholder Rights Agent Agreement dated as of
November 1, 2002 between CIRCOR International, Inc. and American Stock Transfer and Trust Company.

9 Voting Trust Agreements:

9.1 The Amended and Restated George B. Horne Voting Trust Agreement-1997 dated as of September 14, 1999
is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 9.1 to Amendment No. 1 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form 10, File No. 000-26961, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
September 22, 1999 {“Amendment No. 1 to the Form 10”).

10 Material Contracts:
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Description and Location

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

*10.9

*10.10

*10.1

*10.12

¥10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

CIRCOR International, Inc. 1999 Stock Option and Incentive Plan is incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Amendment No. 1 to the Form 10.

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the 1999 Stock Option and Incentive Plan is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Amendment No. 1 to the Form 10.

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for Employees under the 1999 Stock Option and Incentive
Ptan {Five Year Graduated Vesting Schedule) is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3to
Amendment No. 1 to the Form 10.

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for Employees under the 1999 Stock Option and incentive Plan
(Performance Accelerated Vesting Schedule) is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to
Amendment No. 1 to the Form 10.

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for Independent Directors under the 1939 Stock Option and
Incentive Plan is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Amendment No. 1 to the Form 10.
CIRCOR International, Inc. Management Stock Purchase Plan is incorporated herein by reference ta Exhibit
10.6 to Amendment No. 1 to the Form 10.

Form of CIRCOR International, Inc. Supplemental Employee Retirement Plan is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Amendment No. 1 to the Form 10.

Lease Agreement, dated as of February 14, 1999, between BY-PASS 85 Associates, LLC and CIRCOR
International, Inc. is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Amendment No. 1 to the Form 10.
Trust Indenture from Village of Walden Industrial Development Agency to The First National Bank of Boston,
as Trustee, dated June 1, 1994,

Loan Agreement between Hillsborough County Industrial Development Authority and Leslie Controls, Inc.
dated July 1, 1994.

Trust Indenture from Hilisborough County Industrial Development Authority to The First National Bank of
Boston, as Trustee, dated July 1, 1994.

Form of Indemnification Agreement between CIRCOR International, Inc. and each of its Directors dated
November 6, 2002 is incorporated herein by reference.

Executive Employment Agreement, as amended and restated, between CIRCOR, Inc. and David A. Bloss, Sr.,
dated as of October 23, 2002.

Amended and Restated Letter of Credit, Reimbursement and Guaranty Agreement dated as of October 18, 1999
among Leslie Controls, Inc., as Borrower, CIRCOR International, Inc., as Guarantor, and First Union National
Bank as Letter of Credit Provider is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to CIRCOR International,
Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-14962, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
October 21, 1999,

Amended and Restated Letter of Credit, Reimbursement and Guaranty Agreement dated as of October 18, 1999
among Spence Engineering Company, Inc. as Borrower, CIRCOR International, Inc., as Guarantor, and First
Union National Bank as Letter of Credit Provider is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to
CIRCOR International, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 001-14962, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on October 21, 1999.

Credit Agreement, dated as of October 18, 1939, by and among CIRCOR International, Inc., a Delaware
corporation, as Borrower, each of the Subsidiary Guarantors named therein, the Lenders from time to time a
party thereto, ING (U.S.) Capital LLC, as Agent for such Lenders, BankBoston, N.A., as Syndication Agent, First
Union National Bank, as Documentation Agent and ING Barings LLC, as Arranger for the Lenders is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to CIRCOR International, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
File No. 001-14962, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 21, 1999.

Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of October 19, 1993, among CIRCOR International, Inc., a Delaware
corporation, the Subsidiary Guarantors and each of the Purchasers listed on Schedule A attached thereto is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to CIRCOR International, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
File No. 001-14962, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 21, 1999.
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Exhibit
No.

Description and Lecatien

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

¥10.32

Sharing agreements regarding the rights of debt holders relative to one another in the event of insolvency is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.21 on From 10 Q/A filed with the Securities and Exchange

-Commission on August 14, 2000.

Executive Change of Control Agreement between CIRCOR, Inc. and Alan R. Carlsen dated August 8, 2000 is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.23 on Form 10-Q, File No. 001-14962, filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on November 14, 2000.

Executive Change of Control Agreement between CIRCOR, Inc. and Kenneth W. Smith dated August 8, 2000 is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.24 on Form 10-Q, File No. 001-14962, filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on November 14, 2000

Executive Change of Control Agreement between CIRCOR, Inc. and Stephen J. Carriere dated August 8, 2000
isincorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.25 on Form 10-K, File No. 001-14362, filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on March 7, 2001.

Executive Change of Control Agreement between CIRCOR, inc. and Alan J. Glass dated August 8, 2000 is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.26 on Form 10-K, File No. 001-14962, filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on March 7, 2001.

Executive Change of Control Agreement between CIRCOR, Inc. and Paul M. Coppinger dated August 1, 2001 is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.28 on Form 10-K, File No. 001-14862, filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on March 7, 2001.

First Amendment to Executive Change of Control Agreement between Alan R. Carlsen and CIRCOR, Inc. dated
December 7, 2001 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.27 on Form 10-X, File No. 001-14962, filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 12, 2002.

First Amendment to Executive Change of Control Agreement between Kenneth W. Smith and CIRCOR, Inc.
dated December 7, 2001 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.28 on Form 10-K, File No. 001-14962,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 12, 2002,

First Amendment to Executive Change of Control Agreement between Stephen J. Carriere and CIRCOR, Inc.
dated December 7, 2001 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.29 on Form 10-X, File No. 001-14362,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 12, 2002,

First Amendment to Executive Change of Control Agreement between Alan J. Glass and CIRCOR, Inc. dated
December 7, 2001 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.30 on Form 10-K, File No. 001-14962, filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 12, 2002.

First Amendment to Executive Change of Control Agreement between Paul M. Coppinger and CIRCOR, Inc.
dated December 7, 2001 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.31 on Form 10-K, File No. 001-14362,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 12, 2002,

Executive Change of Control Agreement between Douglas E. Frank and CIRCOR, Inc. dated December 7, 2001
is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.32 on Form 10-K, File No. 001-14962, filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on March 12, 2002,

Executive Change of Control Agreement between Carl J. Nasca and CIRCOR, Inc. dated December 7, 2001 is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.33 on Form 10-K, File No. 001-14862, filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on March 12, 2002.

Executive Change of Control Agreement between Barry L. Taylor, Sr. and CIRCOR, Inc. dated December 7,
2001 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.34 on Form 10-K, File No. 001-14362, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 12, 2002.

Amendment No. 1 to the Credit Agreement dated as of December 22, 2000, among CIRCOR International, Inc.;
each of the Subsidiary Guarantors referred to therein; each of the lenders that is a signatory hereto; and ING
Capital LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as agent for the lenders that are a signatory thereto.
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Exthibit
Wo. ' Description and Location

10.33 Amendment No. 2 to the Credit Agreement dated as of December 4, 2002, among CIRCOR International, Inc.,
each of the Subsidiary Guarantors referred to therein; each of the lenders that is a signatory hereto; and ING
Capital LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as agent for the lenders that are a signatory thereto is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 on Form 8-K, file No. 001-14962, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on December 12, 2002,
*21 Schedule of Subsidiaries of CIRCOR International, Inc.
*23 Consent of KPMG LLP.

* Filed with this report
{b} Reports on Form 8-K.

The registrant filed a Current Report on Form 8-K on December 12, 2002 relating to the refinancing of the Company's
existing $75.0 million revolving line of credit by entering into Amendment No. 2 ta the original Credit Agreement.

{c) Sae ltem 153(a)(3) above.
{d) See ltem 13{a)2) above.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CIRCOR INTERNATIONAL, NG,

By: /s/ DAVID A. BLOSS, SR.

David A. Bloss, Sr.
Chairman, President
and Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 12, 2003

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature % Date

/s/ DAVID A, BLOSS, SR. Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer March 12, 2003
David A. Bloss, Sr. and Director (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ KEMMETH W. SMITH Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and March 12, 2003
Kenneth W. Smith Treasurer (Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ STEPHEN J. CARRIERE Vice President, Corporate Controller and March 12, 2003
Stephen J. Carriere Assistant Treasurer {Principal Accounting

Officer)

/s/ DEWAEN K. CROSS Director March 12, 2003
Dewain K. Cross

/s/ DAVIDF. DIETZ Director March 12, 2003
David F. Dietz

/s/ DOUGLAS M. HAYES Director March 12, 2003
Douglas M. Hayes

/s/ DANIEL J. MURPHY, il Director March 12, 2003
Daniel J. Murphy, IIl

/s/ THOMAS E. CALLAHAN Director March 12, 2003
Thomas E. Callahan

/s/ THOMAS E. NAUGLE Director March 12, 2003
Thomas E. Naugle
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CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

|, David A. Bloss, Sr., certify that:

1.
2.

Date:

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of CIRCOR International, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90
days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c. presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors:

a. all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the
registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b. anyfraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and | have indicated in this annual report whether or not there were
significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to
significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

March 12, 2003 Signature: /s/__DAVID A, BLOSS, SR,

David A. Bloss, Sr.
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATICN OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

|, Kenneth W. Smith, certify that;
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of CIRCOR International, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does nat contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information inciuded in this annual
report, fairly presentin all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controis and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual reportis being prepared;

b. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90
days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c. presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures hased on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors:

a. allsignificant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the
registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
rcle in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. Theregistrant’s other certifying officers and | have indicated in this annual report whether or not there were
significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to
significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 12,2003 Signature; /8/_ KENNETH W. SMITH
Kenneth W. Smith

Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITCRS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
CIRCOR International, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of CIRCOR International, Inc. as of December 31, 2002
and 2001 and the related consolidated statements of operations, cash flows and shareholders’ equity for the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also
audited the accompanying financial statement schedule of valuation and qualifying accounts. These consolidated
financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express
an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overali financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of CIRCOR International, Inc. as of December 31,2002 and 2001, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when
considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material
respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2002, the Company changed its
method of accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets.

KPMe LP

Boston, Massachusetts
February 4, 2003
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CIRCOR INTERNATIONAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{In thousands, except share data)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cashand cashequivalents ........... .. i e e
Marketable SECUMtES ... .. i i e e s
Trade accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $2,041 and $2,637,

TESPECHIVEIY . o i e e

TRV 131 (oY T -
Prepaid expenses and other cUrreNt assets ..........oiiirie i
Deferred INC oM taXES .ottt et e e

Total CUITENE ASSBES L. ittt ettt e e
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET ...ttt i e
OTHER ASSETS:

Goodwill, net of accumulated amortizationof $17,080 . . . ... i
L0 T O FY T 1

TOT AL ASSET S o

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNtS PAYEBIE ..o e e
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities .......... ... . ..
Accrued compensationand benefits ......... .
Income taxes Payable ... ... . e
Notes payable and current portion of long-termdebt ........... ... ... ... ...l

Total Current Liabilities ...t e e e
LONG-TERM DEBT, NET OF CURRENT PORTION ..ot
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES .ottt e e e e e e e
OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES ..ot e e e e
MINORITY INTEREST ..ttt e e e e e e e e e

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued and
OULSTANAING .. o e e
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 29,000,000 shares authorized; 15,107,850 and 14,861,890 issued
and outstanding at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively ................... ... ...,
Additional paid-in capital . ... ... e
Retained BaIMIMgS ..ttt et e e e
Accumulated other comprehensive income {loss) ............. .o

Total Shareholders  EqUIty . ... ..ot i i e
TOTALLIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY ..o i e

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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December 31,
2002 2001
$ 38,382 §$ 57,010

4,064 -
56,130 58,855
110,287 99,879
4,262 4,450
5,884 5,998
219,009 226,192
64,365 66,973
100,419 89,833
6,941 3,123
$390,734 $386,121
$ 26,769 $ 27,593
14,715 12,365
5,252 5,853
2,801 1,782
18,596 19,844
68,133 67,437
59,394 71,818
3,934 2,576
10,605 9,794
5,009 6,056
151 149
203,952 200,559
39,200 25,878
356 (4,146)
243,659 222,440
$390,734 $386,121




CIRCOR INTERNATIONAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
{In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended
December 21,
2002 2001 2000
1 T =0Y2 111 1= IR $331,448 $343,083 $316,863
oSt Of FBYBNIUES . ..ottt i e e 233,163 239,606 221,072
GROSS PROFIT ..o e 98,285 103,477 95,791
Selling, general and administrative BXPENSES . ... ...t er et 67,166 66,919 63,718
Goodwill amortization eXpense ..........oovit it i e - 2,737 2,528
Special Charges ... ... e 745 204 1,909
OPERATING INCOME ..ot e e e 30,374 33,617 27,636
Other (income) expense:
MBI IO ...ttt ittt et et e e e {966) {922) (451)
BBt P BISE . . vttt ettt e ettt e e 7,687 8,024 9,727
01T 011 (686) 521 760
TOTAL OTHER EXPENSE ..\t 6,035 7,623 10,036
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES ... .o e e 24,339 25,994 17,600
ProVISION fOr INCOMEB tAXES .\ttt it it et e 8,762 10,398 7,040
NET INCOME .t e e $ 15577 $ 15596 $ 10,560
Earnings per common share:
BaSIC ittt e $ 104 $ 108 $ 080
DR .o e $ 100 $ 104 $ 078
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
BaSIC . i vt e 15,028 14,477 13,238
DIlUted .o e s 15,610 15,023 13,480

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CIRCOR INTERNATIONAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
{In thousands)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
N iMCOME ..ot e e
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by {used in) operating activities:
DepreCiation ..o e e e
AMOrtiZation .o o e e
Deferred iNCOME taXeS ...ttt e e e
(Gain} loss on disposal of property, plantand equipment................. ... .. ...
Loss on write-off of property, plant and equipment ......... ... ..o i,
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects from business acquisitions:
Trade accountsreceivable ....... ... ... e
F 010 7=T 010 -3 P
Prepaid expensesandotherassets .............co i e
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities ......................

Net cash provided by operating activities ..ottt

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to property, plantand equipment . ...... ... . e
Proceeds from the disposal of property, plant and equipment ....................... .
Business acquisitions, netof cashacquired ............ ... . i i
Purchase price adjustments on previous acquisitions ......... ...,
013

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities . ...................cooiiiiii.t.

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long-termdebt ... ... . . e
Payments of long-termdebt ....... ... ... .
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock, net of issuance costs .................
Dividends paid ... ..o e
Proceeds from the exercise of stockoptions ........... ... ... .. ..
Conversion of restricted stock Units ...

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . ................. oo i
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents .................

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS .................oitl .
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningofyear ............ ... ... ... ..ot

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSATENDOFYEAR ...,

Supplemental Cash Flow Information:

Cash paid during the twelve months for;
ETed o211 1= - (-1
1] =T A

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2080
$15,577 $15596 $ 10,560
10,343 9,977 10,141

307 3,069 2,864
3,064 289 1,315
138 (22) (312)
325 - -
6,740 1,291 1,681
(4,251) 12,927 (4,147}
{2,425) 3,632 1,357
(4.894) {1,812 8,241
24,925 44,847 31,700
(4418)  (4,950) (3,743)
119 66 4179
(19,964) (9,617)  (4,109)
1,088 - 9,500
{66) - (4)
(23,241)  (14,501) 5,827
3,934 17,952 36,172
(24,564) (16,241)  (69,590)
- 18,698 -
(2,255)  (2,169)  (1,502)
2,249 369 179
132 9 58
(20504) 18,618  (34,683)
192 (146) 195
(18,628) 48,818 3,039
57,010 8,192 5,153
$38382 $57,010 $ 8,192
$ 4387 $ 7480 $ 5573
$ 7240 $ 7689 $ 9727
$ 577 & 69 § 918

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CIRCOR INTERNATIONAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
{In thousands)

Accumulated T
Additional Other otai
_CommonStock  “pgigin  Retained Comprehensive Sharehoiders’
Shares Amount  Capital  Earnings Income (Loss) Equity

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31,1939 ............... 13,237 $132 $180,887 $ 3,393 $(1,003) $183,409
Netincome ...... ..o, 10,560 10,560
Cumulative translation adjustment ............... {1,584) (1,584)

Comprehensive income ....................0. 8,976
Common stock dividends declared ............... (1,502} (1,502}
Stock optionsexercised ................ ... ... 20 1 178 179
Conversion of restricted stockunits .............. ] - 58 58
Net change in restricted stockunits . ............. 61 61
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31,2000 ............... 13,263 133 181,184 12,451 (2,587} 191,181
Netincome ... 15,596 15,596
Cumulative translation adjustment ............... (1,559) (1,559)

Comprehensive income ..............covenn. 14,037
Issuance of commonstock ............ ... ... .. 1,553 16 18,682 18,698
Common stock dividends declared ............... {2,169) (2,169}
Stock options exercised ....................... 45 - 527 527
Conversion of restricted stock units .............. 1 - 9 9
Net change in restricted stock units. . ............ 157 157
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31,2001 ............... 14,862 149 200,559 25,878 {4,146) 222,440
NetinCome ......o.virii i 15,577 15,577
Cumulative transiation adjustment ............... 5,481 5,481
Additional minimum pension liability (net of tax

benefitof$608) ......... ... (996) {996}
Unrealized net gain-marketable securities (net of

tax of $10) ... 17 17

Comprehensive income .............c..ovunnn 20,079
Common stock dividends declared ............... {2,255) (2,255)
Stock options exercised ........... ... ... 234 2 3,064 3,066
Conversion of restricted stock units .............. 12 - 132 132
Net change in restricted stock units . ............. 197 197
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31,2002 ............... 15,108 $151 $203,952 $39,200 $ 356 $243,659

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CIRCOR INTERNATIONAL, INC.
NOTES 7O CONSGLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
(1) Description of Business

C{RCOR International, Inc. (“CIRCOR” or the “Company” or “we") designs, manufactures and distributes valves and
related products and services for use in a wide range of applications to optimize the efficiency or ensure the safety of
fluid-control systems. The valves and related fluid-control products we manufacture are used in processing industries;
oil and gas exploration, production, distribution and refining; pipeline construction and maintenance; HVAC and power;
aerospace, military and commercial aircraft; and maritime manufacturing and maintenance. We have used both internal
product development and strategic acquisitions to assemble a complete array of fluid-control products and
technologies that enables us to address our customers’ unique fluid-control application needs. We have two major
product groups: Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Controls Products, and Petrochemical Products.

The Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Controls Products Group designs, manufactures and sells valves and controls for
diverse end-uses including instrumentation, aerospace, cryogenic and steam applications. Selected products include
precision valves, compression tube and pipefitting, control valves, relief valves, couplers, regulators and strainers. The
Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Controls Products Group includes the following subsidiaries and major divisions:
Aerodyne Controls; Circle Seal Controls, Inc.; CPC-Cryolab; Hoke, Inc.; Laslie Controls, Inc.; Nicholson Steam Trap;
Rockwood Swendemen; Regeltechnik Kornwestheim GmbH; Société Alsacienne Regulaves Thermiques von Rohr, S.A,;
Spence Engineering Company, Inc.; SSI Equipment, Inc.; Tomco Products, Inc.; and U.S. Para Plate Corporation.

The Petrochemical Products Group designs, manufactures and sells flanged-end and threaded-end floating and
trunnion ball valves, needle valves, check valves, butterfly valves and large forged steel ball valves and gate valves for
use in oil, gas and chemical processing and industrial applications. The Petrochemical Products Group includes the
following subsidiaries and major divisions: KF Contromatics Specialty Products; KF Industries, Inc.; Pibiviesse S.p.A,;
Suzhou KF Valve Co., Ltd.; and KF Telford Engineered Products.

On October 18, 19939 (the “spin-off date”), we became a publicly owned company as a result of a tax-free distribution of
our common stock (the “distribution” or “spin-off”) to the shareholders of our former parent, Watts industries, Inc.
{“Wvatts”).

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

The consalidated financial statements include the accounts of CIRCOR International, Inc. and it’s wholly and majority
owned subsidiaries. The results of companies acquired during the year are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date of acquisition. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management toc make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements and accompanying disclosures. Some of the more significant estimates include depreciation, amortization
and impairment of long-lived assets, pension obligations, deferred income taxes, inventory valuations, sales returns,
special charges, environmental liability, product liability, warranty accruals and allowance for doubtful accounts. While
management believes that the estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the financial statements are
appropriate, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition and Alfowance for Sales Returns

Revenue is recognized when products are shipped and title has passed to the customer provided that no significant
post-delivery obligations remain and collection of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured. Alfowances for sales
returns are recorded as a reduction of revenues based upon historical experience, return policies and contractual
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CIRCOR INTERNATIONAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

product return rights granted to customers. Adjustments to the allowance account are made as new information
becomes available. Shipping and handling costs invoiced to customers are recorded as components of revenues and
the associated costs are recorded as cost of sales.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We estimate the collectibility of our accounts receivable and the amount of bad debts that may be incurred in the future.
We analyze specific customer accounts, historical experience, customer concentrations and relationships, credit
ratings, and current economic trends when evaluating the adequacy of our allowance for doubtful accounts.

Cash Fquivalents

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less.

Marketable Securities

Marketable securities consist of various forms of mutual funds and equity securities, all of which are currently
designated as available for sale. As such, the carrying values of our marketable securities are marked to market and
unrealized gains and losses at the balance sheet date are recognized net of tax in other comprehensive income.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is generally determined on the first-in, first-out (“FIFQ”) basis.
Where appropriate, standard cost systems are utilized for purposes of determining cost; the standards are adjusted as
necessary to ensure they approximate actual costs. Estimates of lower of cost or market value of inventory are
determined at the operating unit fevel and evaluated periodically. Estimates for obsolescence or unmarketable inventory
are maintained based on current economic conditions, historical sales quantities and patterns and, in some cases, the
specific risk of loss on specifically identified inventories. Such inventories are recorded at estimated realizable value net
of the costs of disposal.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets, which range from 10 to 50 years for buildings and improvements and 3 to 15 years for
machinery and equipment. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term or estimated useful life of the asset. Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board {“FASB”) Statement No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets,” ("Statement No. 142”) on January 1, 2002, Statement No. 142 addresses the financia! accounting and reporting
standards for the acquisition of intangible assets outside of a business combination and for goodwill and other
intangible assets subsequent to their acquisition. As a result of adopting Statement No. 142, we no longer amortize
goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets; rather they are written-down, as needed, based upon impairment. During
the first half of 2002, we completed our transitional impairment review, as required by Statement No. 142, and
determined that there was no impairment. Additionally, we perform an impairment test en an annual basis or more
frequently if circumstances warrant. Intangible assets that have definite useful lives continue to be amortized over their
useful lives.

Impairment of Other Long-Lived Assets

Other long-lived assets include property, plant, and equipment and intangibles with definite lives. We perform
impairment analyses of our other long-lived assets whenever events and circumstances indicate that they may be
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CIRCOR INTERNATIONAL, INC.
MOTES TQ CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATERMENTS—(Continued)

impaired. When the undiscounted future cash flows are expected to be less than the carrying value of the assets being
reviewed for impairment, the assets are written down to fair market value.

Research and Development

Research and development expenditures are expensed when incurred and are included in the operating income in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations. Qur research and development expenditures for the years ended December 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000, were $2.8 million, $2.6 million and $2.8 million, respectively.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in
which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. A valuation
allowance is recagnized if we anticipate that we may not realize some or all of a deferred tax asset.

Environmental Compliance and Remediation

Environmental expenditures that relate to current operations are expensed or capitalized as appropriate. Expenditures
that relate to existing conditions caused by past operations, which do not contribute to current or future revenue
generation, are expensed. Liabilities are recorded when environmental assessments and, or, remedial efforts are
probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated. Estimated costs are based upon current laws and regulations,
existing technology and the most probable method of remediation. The costs are not discounted and exclude the effects
of inflation. If the cost estimates result in a range of equally probable amounts, the lower end of the range is accrued.

Foreign Currency Translation

Our international subsidiaries operate and report their financial results using local functional currencies. Accordingly,
all assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries are translated into United States dollars using exchange rates in effect at
the end of the period, and revenues and costs are translated using weighted average exchange rates for the period. The
resulting translation adjustments are presented as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive income.
We do not provide for U.S. income taxes on foreign currency translation adjustments since we do not provide for such
taxes on undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries.

Earnings Per Common Share

Basic earnings per common share is calculated by dividing net income by the number of weighted average common
shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per common share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average
common shares outstanding and assumes the conversion of all dilutive securities.
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CIRCOR INTERMATIONAL, INC.
NMOTES TO CONSOLIBATED AINANCIAL STATEMENTS—{Continued)

Earnings per common share and the weighted average number of shares used to compute net earnings per common
share, basic and assuming full dilution, are reconciled below {In thousands, except per share data):

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001
Per Per
Met Share Net Share
Income Shares Amount Income Shares Amount
BasicEPS . ... .. $15577 15028  $1.04 $15596 14,477  $1.08
Dilutive securities, principally common stock options .. .. .. ~ 582 04 - h46 .04
BilutedEPS ... ... $15577 15610  $1.00 $15596 15,023  $1.04

Options to purchase 255,500 and 260,500 shares of our common stock, at an exercise price of $16.32 in both years, were
not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, because the exercise price was more than the average market price of the common shares for the
twelve-month period.

Stock Based Compensation

We measure compensation cost in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees,” (“APB No. 25") and related interpretations. Accordingly, no accounting recognition is given to stock
options granted to our employees at fair market value until the options are exercised. Upon exercise, we credit the net
proceeds, including income tax benefits realized, if any, to equity. The following table illustrates the effect on netincome
and earnings per share if we had applied the fair value recognition provisions of FASB Statement No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock Based Compensation”, to stock based employee compensation (In thousands, except per share data):

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000
N IMCOME . o e $15,577 $15,596 $10,560
Stock-based employee compensation cost, net of tax, that would have been included in
the determination of income if the fair value based method had been applied to all
WIS Lottt e 639 397 299
Pro forma netincome as if the fair value based method had been applied to all awards .... $14,938 $15,199 $10,261
Earnings per common share (as reported):
BaSIC ... $ 104 $ 108 $ 080
DR ot e e $ 100 $ 104 $ 078
Pro forma earnings per common share:
BasIC .. $ 099 $ 105 § 078
DIlUted . o e $ 096 $ 101 $ 076

Derivative Financial Instruments

We use foreign currency forward exchange contracts to manage currency exchange exposures in certain foreign
currency denominated transactions. Gains and losses on contracts designated as hedges are recognized when the
contracts expire, which is generally in the same time period as the underlying foreign currency denominated
transactions. Gains and losses on contracts that do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment are recognized as
incurred as a component of other non-operating income or expense.
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CIRCOR INTERNATIONAL, INC.
NOTES 70 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—{Continued)

New Accounting Standards

We adopted FASE Statement No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” (“Statement
No. 144”) on January 1, 2002. Statement No. 144 refines existing impairment accounting guidance for long-lived assets
and extends the use of accounting for discontinued operations to both reporting segments and distinguishable
components thereof. Statement No. 144 also eliminates the existing exception ta consolidation of a subsidiary for which
control is likely to be temporary. The adoption of Statement No. 144 had no impact on our consolidated results of
operations or financial position.

In April 2002, FASB Statement No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statement Nos. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement
No. 13, and Techrical Corrections,” {"Statement No. 145”), was issued effective for fiscal years beginning May 15, 2002
or later. Statement No. 145 rescinds Statement No. 4, “Reporting Gains and Losses fram the Extinguishment of Debt,”
Statement No. 44, “Accounting for Intangible Assets of Motor Carriers” and Statement No. 64, “Extinguishments of Debt
Made to Satisfy Sinking-Fund Requirements.” Statement No. 145 also amends Statement No. 13, “Accounting For
Leases,” to eliminate an inconsistency between the required accounting for sale-leaseback transactions and for certain
transactions that have economic effects that are similar to sale-leaseback transactions. This statement also amends
other existing authoritative proanouncements to make various technical corrections, clarify meaning or describe their
applicability under changed conditions. We adopted the provisions of Statement No. 145 effective April 1, 2002, and the
adoption had no impact on our cansolidated results of aperations or financial position.

In July 2002, FASB Statement No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated With Exit or Disposal Activities,” {“Statement
No. 146”), was issued. Statement No. 146 requires companies to recognize costs associated with exit or disposal
activities when they are incurred rather than at the date of a commitment to an exit or disposal plan. This statement is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2002. We do not believe the impact of adopting Statement No. 146
will have a material impact on our reported consolidated of operation or financial position.

in December 2002, FASB Statement No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure-An
Amendment of SFAS No. 123, (“Statement No. 148"}, was issued. Statement No. 148 amends Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“Statement No. 123”), to provide
alternative methads of transition for a voluntary change to the fair-value-based method of accounting for stock-based
employee compensation. In addition, this Statement amends the disclosure requirements of Statement No. 123 to
require prominent disclosures in not only annual, but also interim financial statements about the effect the fair value
method would have had on reported results. The transition and annual disclosure requirements of Statement No. 148 are
effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002. We have adopted the annual disclosure provisions of
Statement No. 148 in these consolidated financial statements. The interim disclosure requirements are effective for
interim periods beginning after December 15, 2002. We have chosen to continue to account for stock-based
compensation of employees using the fair value method prescribed in APB No.25.

FASB Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect
Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others, an Interpretation of FASB No. 5, 57, and 107 and Rescission of FASB
Interpretation No. 34,” (“FIN No. 45”) was issued in November 2002. FIN No. 45 elaborates on the disclosures to be made
by a guarantor and clarifies requirements relating to the guarantor’'s accounting for, and disclosure of, the issuance of
certain types of guarantees. FIN No. 45 requires that upon issuance of a guarantee, companies recognize a liability for
the fair value of the obligation it assumes under that guarantee. We have adopted the annual disclosure provisions of
FIN No. 45 in these consolidated financial statements. We will adopt the provisions for initial recognition and
measurement and interim disclosures during the first quarter of 2003, We do offer warranties, but the returns under
warranty have been immaterial. The adoption of FIN No. 45 is not expected to have a material effect on the consolidated
financial statements.
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tn January 2003, FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB No.
51,” (“FIN No. 46”) was issued. FIN No. 46 requires certain variable interest entities to be consolidated by the primary
beneficiary of the entity if the equity investors in the entity do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial
interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated
financial support from other parties. FIN No. 46 is effective for all new variable interest entities created or acquired after
January 31, 2003. For variable interest entities created or acquired prior to February 1, 2003, the provisions of FIN No. 46
must be applied for the first interim or annual period beginning after June 15, 2003. We have no variable interest entities
at this time, and as such, the adoption of FIN No. 46 will not have an effect on the consolidated financial statements.

(3) Business Acquisitions

On July 22, 1998, Watts Investment Company, a subsidiary of Watts, acquired Hoke, Inc. (“Hoke"), a multinational
manufacturer of industrial valves and fittings, for approximately $85.0 million, consisting of cash and the assumption of
debt. On October 18, 1999, the spin-off date, the ownership of Hoke was transferred to CIRCOR. Additionally, Watts
Investment Company assigned to us all of its rights under the Stock Purchase Agreement governing the Hoke acquisition
{the “Stock Purchase Agreement”). As a result, we became the claimant in two separate arbitration proceedings against
the former Hoke stockholders. In early 1999, pursuant to the terms of the Stock Purchase Agreement, arbitration
proceedings began between the farmer Hoke stockhalders and us to determine the net worth of the Hoke clasing
balance sheet. In May 2000, the arbitrator awarded us a purchase price adjustment in the amount of $6.2 million.
Because the Stock Purchase Agreement provided for a deferred purchase price payment by us of $3.5 million, the net
effect of the arbitrator’s award resulted in a net payment to us of $1.5 million net of associated professional fees. The
former Hoke stockholders paid all amounts owed to us as a result of this award. In a second claim made on December
11, 1998, we asserted that the former Hoke stackholders, either intentionally or unintentionally, made misrepresentations
in the Stock Purchase Agreement regarding Hoke’s financial statements and that those misrepresentations caused
Hoke's earnings for 1997 to be inflated, thereby causing us harm. This claim was the subject of a separate proceeding
with a different arbitrator than was used in the closing date balance sheet dispute. During November 2000, the former
Hoke stockholders agreed to settle this claim and paid us $8.0 million net of professional fees. During September 2002,
we reduced recorded goodwill by $0.6 million as a result of the recovery of a portion of our purchase price paid for the
acquisition of Hoke. This recovery of purchase price was in accordance with an arbitration agreement with the former
shareholders of Hoke, who awarded us the rights to the recovery of certain previously paid income taxes.

On November 29, 2000, we acquired the Rockwood Swendeman product line, a line of cryogenic safety relief valves that
was manufactured and distributed in Scarborough, Maine. The cost of this acquisition was 34.0 miilion and was paid in
cash. The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net identifiable assets of $3.4 million acquired has been
recorded as goodwill. The purchase agreement also provides for additional payments over the next five years
contingent on future sales. The additional payments, if any, will be accounted for as additional goodwill. As of
December 31, 2002, no additional payments have been made.

On June 25, 2001, we acquired a 75% interest in Regeltechnik Kornwestheim GmbH and affiliates (“RTK"}, a German
closed corporation. The aggregate purchase price paid for RTK was $10.6 million, net of cash acquired and included the
assumption of $4.2 in long-term debt. RTK manufactures and sells control vaives, regulators, actuators and related
instrumentation products primarily for steam and fluid process applications in the HVAC, industrial, food, beverage and
pharmaceutical markets. On February 5, 2002, the minority interest shareholder of RTK exercised the put option granted
to him in the purchase agreement, thereby electing to sell us the remaining 25% interest in RTK. Accordingly, during
March 2002 we paid cash of approximately $2.5 million for the purchase of this 25% interest in RTK, resulting in

$1.3 million of additional goodwill. The aggregate purchase price for RTK acquisition was $13.0 million, consisting of
$8.8 million of cash, net of acquired cash, and the assumption of $4.2 million of long-term debt. The excess of the
purchase price over the fair value of the net identifiable assets of $5.2 million acquired has been recorded as goodwill.
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The results of operations for this business have previously been included in our consolidated financial statements from
the date our initial 75% ownership share was acquired in June 2001.

On June 29, 2001, we acquired 100% interest in Société Alsacienne Regulaves Thermiques von Rohr, S.A. (“SART"), a
French limited liability company. SART manufactures and sells control valves, regulators, actuators and related
instrumentation products primarily for steam and fluid process applications in the HYAC, industrial, food, beverage and
pharmaceutical markets. We paid $2.8 million in cash; net of $0.1 million in cash acquired, and assumed $0.3 miliion of
long-term debt for an aggregate purchase price of $3.1 million. The purchase agreement also provides for additional
payments over the next five years contingent on future sales. The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the
net identifiable assets of $0.7 million acquired has been recorded as goodwill. The results of operations of SART have
been included in our consolidated financial statements since the date of acquisition.

During June 2002, we received $0.5 million in cash representing a purchase price adjustment relating to the resolution of
indemnification claims that were previously made against the former owners of Leslie Controls, Inc. The refunded cash
purchase price was accounted for as a reduction of recorded goodwill.

In October 2002, we purchased Tomco and U.S. Para Plate for $17.6 million in cash. We assumed $0.7 million in long-term
debt, received $2.5 million in cash, and $4.0 million in marketable securities at fair market value. We also deposited an
additional $2.3 million into separate escrow accounts for the benefit of the sellers subject to any such claims by us as are
allowed in accordance with the purchase agreements. Any funds remaining in the escrow account at the conclusion of the
contingency periods will be distributed to the sellers and accounted for as additional purchase price. Tomco, located in
Painesville, Ohio, manufactures a full line of quick connect and disconnect couplers for general purpose industrial
applications and for use in mare sophisticated instrumentation markets. U.S. Para Plate, located in Auburn, California,
develops and produces high-pressure valves and regulators for industrial, aerospace and military applications. The
combined annual revenues for both Tomco and U.S. Para Plate are approximately $13.0 million. We financed both of these
acquisitions through our available cash flow. The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of $9.5 miflion has been recorded as goodwill and is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

All acquisitions were accounted for as purchase business combinations.

The following table reflects unaudited pro forma consolidated results on the basis that Tomco, U.S. Para Plate, RTK and
SART acquisitions took place and were recorded at the beginning of the fiscal year for each of the respective periods
presented {In thousands):

Year Ended December 3%,

2002 2001 2000
R L=V TV S O $343,420 $364,180 $348,186
Nt iNCOME L e 16,561 16,735 11,378
Earnings pershare: basic ... ...t e 1.10 1.16 .86
diluted ... e e 1.06 1.1 .84

The unaudited pro forma consolidated results of operations may not be indicative of the actual results that would have
occurred had the acquisitions been consummated at the beginning of each fiscal period, or of future operations of the
consolidated companies under our ownership and management.
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The foilowing tables provide reconciliations of the net cash paid and goodwill recorded for acquisitions during the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 (In thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

Reconciliation of net cash paid:

Fairvalue of assets acquired ........ ...t $24,960 $19,542 $4,350
Purchase price adjustment .. ... . e (1,088) - {9,500}
Less: liabilities assumed ... ... i 2,317 9,140 245
Cash paid {received) ........ ..ot 21,495 10,402  (5,395)
Lessicashacquired ... e e 2,619 785 -
Net cash paid {received) for acquired businesses ............................... $18,876 $ 9,617 $(5395)
Determination of goodwill:
Cash paid (received), net of cash acquired ...............ccoiiiiiiiiiiinnn., $18876 $ 9,617 $(5,395)
Liahilities assumed . ... .. 2,317 9,140 245
Less: fair value of tangible assets acquired, net of cash acquired .................. 11,780 13,764 832
GoodWill ... $ 9473 $4993 $5982)

{4) Marketable Securities

All marketable securities are designated as available for sale. No marketable securities were held in 2000 or 2001. A
schedule of marketable securities at December 31, 2002 follows (In thousands):

Gross Gross Estimated
Adjusted Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. government agency mutualfunds .. ............ ... .. ..., $3,150 $27 3 $3,177
Equity mutualfunds ... ... 254 - 5 249
Equity securities ... ... i 633 8 3 638
$4,037 $ﬁ @ $4,064
{5) Inventories
Inventories consist of the following (In thousands);
December 31,
2002 2001
RaW Materials ..t $ 44,065 $42,829
OTK M PrOCESS Lo it i et e e e e 26,480 26,111
Finished go00S ..o o e 39,742 30,939

$110,287 $99,879
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{6) [Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and eguipment consists of the following (In thousands):

December 31,
2002 2001
LaNd L s $ 6433 $ 4562
Buildings and ImMPrOVemMeNTS ...\ ittt et e et e i e 33,406 25,063
Machinery and equipment .. .. ... ... e 118,234 119,425
CONSITUCHION IN PrOgrESS ..\ttt ittt et e e et e e e 925 311
158,998 149,461
Accumulated depreciation .. ... ...t (94,633) (82,488)

$ 64,365 $ 66,973

{7} Goodwill and Other intangible Assets

in accordance with Statement No. 142, we completed a transitional goodwill impairment evaluation by comparing the
fair value of our reporting units as of January 1, 2002 to their carrying values and determined that the fair value of the
reporting units” goodwill exceeded their carrying value and that no impairment existed. We completed our annual
goodwill impairment valuation as of November 1, 2002 during the fourth quarter of 2002, and determined that the fair
value of the reporting units’ goodwill exceeded their carrying value and that no impairment existed for the annual
evaluation as well.

The following table shows goodwill, by segment, net of accumulated amortization, as of December 31, 2002
{In thousands):

instrumentation
& Thermal Fluid
Controls Petrochemical Consolidated
Products Products Total
Goodwill as of December31,2001 ........ ... vneeinn.. $77,905 $11,928 $ 89,833
Business acquisitions (seenote 3} ............ .. ... ... 10,561 - 10,561
Purchase price adjustment of previous acquisitions
(SEBNOTE 3] L\t (1,088) - (1,088)
Currency translation adjustments ........................... 1,094 19 1,113
Goodwill as of December31,2002 ................ ...t $88,472 $11,947 $100,419
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In accordance with Statement No. 142, goodwill associated with acquisitions consummated after June 30, 2001 is not
amortized and the amortization of goodwill from business combinations consummated before June 30, 2001 ceased on
January 1, 2002. The following table reflects the results of operations had Statement No. 142 been adopted and applied

to all prior periods (In thousands, except per share data):

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

N iNCOME .o e $15,577 815596 $10,560
Goodwill amortization eXPenSe .. ... .. ve ittt e - 2,737 2,528

AJUSTEd NBLINCOME ...\ttt e e e e $15,577 $18,333 $13,088
Basic sarnings per Share:
NI COMIE et e $ 104 $ 108 $ 080
Goodwill amortization @XPeNSE . ...ttt e - 0.19 0.19

Adjusted earnings Pershare ............c.oviriirintit $ 104 $ 127 $ 0.99
Diiuted earnings per share:
NI COME .o e $ 100 $ 104 $ 078
Goodwill amortization eXPENSE .. ... .v' et e - 0.18 0.19

Adjusted earnings Pershare . ..........oovirriiiii i $ 100 $ 122 § 097
The table below presents gross intangible assets and the related accumulated amortization as of December 31, 2002
{In thousands):

Gross
Carrying Accumulated
Amount  Amertization

-1 C=] 111 $2,935 $(2,591)
Trademarks and trade NAMES . ...\ttt et e et e 1,613 (1,051)
Land use MightS ... e e 1,180 {243)
040 149 (149)

L L 1 $5,877 $(4,034)
Net carrying value of intangible assets . ........ ... i $1,843

The table below presents estimated amortization expense for intangible assets recorded as of January 1, 2002

(In thousands):

After

Estimated amortization eXpense . .........c..vvivrioiiit i $292 $152 $139 $128 360 $1,072
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{8 Income Taxes

The significant components of our deferred income tax liabilities and assets are as follows {In thousands):

2002 2001

Deferred income tax liabilities:

Excesstax over book depreciation ... .. ...t $7320 $703

LYY 1L (o] o 4,483 2,978

03T - 580

Total deferred income tax liabilities .......... ..t i 11,803 10,592

Deferred income tax assets:

ACCTUBT BXPBNSES L .ttt ittt e e 6,104 6,026

Net operating loss and creditcarryforward ........... ... . . 1,741 1,681

Cost basis differences inintangible assets ............cc it i 1,290 1,649

BT i e e 5,330 5,214

Total deferred iINCOME taX 8SSBES ... i i it et it 14,465 14,570

Valuationallowance.................................................., ............. 712 558

Deferred income tax asset, net of valuation allowance ........ .. .o iiiinnnn.. 13,753 14,014

Deferred INCOME LaX @SSBE, ML . . o\ttt ettt e e e et $ 1950 §$ 3422
The above components of deferred income taxes are classified in the respactive consolidated

balance sheet as follows:

Net current deferred iINCOME tAX @SSBS ...\ttt e e e e $5884 $ 5998

Net noncurrent deferred income tax liabilities ........ ..o i (3,934) (2,576)

Deferred INCOmMeE taX ASSet, MBt . ...ttt e e e e $ 1,950 § 3422
The provision for income taxes is based on the following pre-tax income {In thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000

010)1 1T T P $15,516 $18,699 $13,790
BTN o 8,823 7,295 3,810

824,339 $25,994 $17,600
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The provision for income taxes (benefit) consists of the following {In thousands):
Year Ended December 31,
2032 2001 2080

Current tax expense:

Federal ..o e $1,714 $7,030 83,759
FOrBIgN oo i 3,604 2,380 1,354
L1 - R 380 699 612

5698 10,108 5,725

Deferred tax expense (benefit):

Federal ..o e e 3,334 9 73
210 -1 1+ 1 T R (572} 180 954
ST . e e 302 100 288

3,064 289 1,315
$8,762 810,398 $7,040

Actual income taxes reported from operations are different from those that would have been computed by applying the
federal statutory tax rate to income before income taxes. The reasons for these differences are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 208D

Computed expected federalincometaxrate ............. i 360% 35.0% 360%
State income taxes, net of federaltax benefit .......... ... . .. . 1.8 2.0 33
Goodwill amOrtizatioN ... ... i i e 0.0 2.9 4.4
Foreigntaxrate differential ......... ... i i e 0.6 - 15
Extraterritorial income exclusion {(formerly FSC) .............. .. ... ... .. ... PP (2.2) (2.0} (5.0)
(T 2 T A 0.8 ﬂ ﬂ

Effective TaX Rate .. ... e e 36.0% 40.0% 40.0%

At December 31, 2002, we had a foreign net operating loss of $877,000 and foreign tax credits of $760,000. The Company
also had state net operating losses of $5.3 million and state tax credits of $400,000. At December 31, 2001, the Campany
had foreign tax credits of $1.1 million, federal net operating loss of $155,000, state net operating losses of $3.9 million,
and state tax credits of $341,000. The foreign net ope;aii\n‘g‘losses can bhe carried forward indefinitely. Foreign tax credits
if not utilized will expire in 2005. The state net operating losses and state tax credits if not utilized will expire in 2014
through 2022. The Company had a valuation allowance of $712,000 and $556,000 as of December 31, 2002 and

December 31, 2001, respectively, against the state net operating losses and state tax credits. Management believes that
after considering all of the available objective evidence, it is more likely than not that the results of future operations will
generate sufficient taxable income to realize the remaining deferred tax assets.

Undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries amounted to $12.5 million at December 31, 2002 and $8.0 million at
December 31, 2001. Those earnings are considered ta be indefinitely reinvested and, accardingly, no provision far

U.S. federal and state income taxes has been recorded thereon. Upon distribution of those earnings, in the form of
dividends or otherwise, we will be subject to both U.S. income taxes (subject to an adjustment for foreign tax credits) and
withholding taxes payable to the various foreign countries. Determination of the amount of U.S. income tax liability that
would be incurred is not practicable because of the complexities associated with its hypothetical calculation; however,
unrecognized foreign tax credits would be available to reduce some portion of any U.S. income tax liability. Withholding
taxes of $0.5 million would be payable upon remittance of all previously unremitted earnings at December 31, 2002.
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(8) Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses and ather current liabilities consist of the fallowing {In thousands):

December 31,

2002 2001
Commissions and sales incentives payable . ... .. ... $4900 $ 3582
TS0 3o 2,627 yAVA!
L]0 =1 A 1,210 1513
1711 T 5978 5,149

$14,715  $12,365

{(10) Finaacing Arrangements

Long-term debt consists of the following (in thousands):

December 31,
2002 200%
Senior unsecured notes, maturing October 19, 2002-2008, at a fixed interest rate 0f 8.23% .......... $60,000 $75,000
Industrial revenue bonds, maturing in December 2006 and August 2019, at variable interest rates of
1.45% and 1.64% at December 31, 2002, and 1.45% and 1.50% at December 31,2001 ............. 12,260 12,265
Capital lease obligations . ... . ... oo e 3 -
Other borrowings, at varying interest rates ranging from 1.65% to 8.5% in 2002
and 2.15% 10 8.5% 10 2001 .. ..ottt 5727 10,397
Total long-term debt . ... oo e e 77990 97,662
T W =T ) 410 T« A 18,596 19,844
Total long-term debt, 1SS CUrreNt POtION ...\ vt ittt it e $59,394 $77,818

On October 18, 1939, we entered into a $75.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility agreement maturing in

October 2003. On December 4, 2002, we refinanced this credit line by entering into an amendment to the original credit
agreement that extends the term of the facility to December 2006. The credit agreement provides us with an option to
increase the line to $100 million. In accordance with the credit facility agreement, the rate of interest and facility fees we
are charged vary based upon changes in our net debt leverage ratio. We can borrow at either the Euro dollar rate pius
an applicable margin of 0.625% to 1.625% or at a base rate plus an applicable margin of 0% to 0.25%. The base rate for
any day is the higher of the federal funds rate plus ¥2 of 1% or the lenders prime rate. We are also required to pay an
unused facility fee that can range from 0.15 to 0.35% per annum and a utilization fee of 0.125% per annum if our
borrowings exceed 50% of the credit facility limit.

At December 31, 2002, we had $75.0 million available from the unsecured revolving credit facility to support our
acquisition program, working capital requirements, and for general corporate purposes.

On October 19, 1999, we also issued $75.0 million of unsecured notes that matures through annual principal payments
from October 2002-2006. Proceeds from the notes and borrowings under the credit facility were used to repay

$96.0 million of investments by, and advances from, Watts and the outstanding balance under a then existing term loan
agreement. Beginning on October 19, 2002, we commenced making $15.0 million annual payments reducing the

$75.0 million outstanding balance of our unsecured 8.23% senior notes, which mature in October 2006.
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Certain of our loan agreements contain covenants that require, among other items, maintenance of certain financial
ratios and also limits our ability to: enter into secured and unsecured barrowing arrangements; issue dividends to
shareholders; acquire and dispose of businesses; invest in capital equipment; participate in certain higher yielding long-
term investment vehicles; and issue additional shares of our stock. We were in compliance with all covenants related to
our existing debt obligations at December 31, 2002 and 2001.

At December 31, 2002, minimum principal payments required during each of the next five years are as follows
{In thousands):

Year ending December 31,

2003 $18,596
00 16,153
2005 e 15,265
2008 L 22,165
2007 .. e 49
TherEalter o 5,162

$77,990

(11) Stock-Based Compensation

The 1999 Stock Option and Incentive Plan {the “1999 Stock Plan”) adopted by our Board of Directors permits the grant of
the following types of awards to our officers, other employees and non-employee directors: incentive stock aptions,
non-qualified stock options, deferred stock awards, restricted stock awards, unrestricted stock awards, performance
share awards and dividend equivalent rights. The 1999 Stock Plan provides for the issuance of up to 2,000,000 new
shares of common stock (subject to adjustment for stock splits and similar events). New options granted under the 1399
Stock Plan could have varying vesting provisions and exercise periods. Options granted vestin periods ranging from 1to
7 years and expire 10 years after the grant date.

The CIRCOR Management Stock Purchase Plan, which is a component of the 1999 Stock Plan, provides that eligible
employees may elect to receive restricted stock units in lieu of all or a portion of their pre-tax annual incentive bonus
and, in some cases, make after-tax contributions in exchange for restricted stock units. In addition, non-employee
directors may elect to receive restricted stock units in lieu of all or a portion of their annual directors’ fees. Each
restricted stock unit represents a right to receive one share of our common stock after a three-year vesting period.
Restricted stock units are granted at a discount of 33% from the fair market value of the shares of common stock on the
date of grant. This discount is amortized as compensation expense ratably over the vesting period.

At the spin-off date, vested and non-vested Watts options held by our employees terminated in accordance with their
terms and new options of equivalent value were issued under the 1993 Stock Plan to replace the Watts options
{“replacement options”). The vesting dates and exercise periods of the options were not affected by the replacement.
Based on their original Watts grant date, CIRCOR replacement options vest during the years 1999 to 2003 and expire

10 years after grant of the original Watts options. Additionally, at the spin-off date, vested and non-vested Watts
restricted stock units and stock appreciation rights (“SARS") held by our employees were converted into comparable
restricted stock units and SARS based on our common stock. Vested restricted stock units will be distributed in shares
of our common stock. Upon exercise, vested SARS will be payable in cash. At December 31, 2002, there were 236,389
restricted stock units and 50,441 SARS outstanding. Compensation expense related to restricted stock units and SARS
for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $0.3 million, $0.4 million and $0.1 million, respectively.
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The fair value of each option grant was estimated as of the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model
with the following assumptions:

December 31,
2z 20
RiSk-TrRe MBS TAIE .. . .ttt ettt i e e e e e 41% 54% 5.8%
Expected ife (YBaArS) ... 7 7 5
Expected stock volatility ... . ... 45.5% 55.7% 46.3%
Expected dividend yield . ..o 0.9% 09% 1.8%

A summary of the status of all options granted to employees and non-employee directors at December 31, 2002, 2001,
and 2000 and changes during the years then ended is presented in the table below (Options in thousands):

December 31,
2002 2001 2000
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price Options Exsrcise Price
Options outstanding at beginning of period .. ... 1,417 $11.14 1,232 $ 985 1,025 $10.43
Granted ...t 339 13.90 219 16.10 406 8.60
Exercised ...... ... {234) 9.58 (45} 8.11 (20) 8.78
Canceled ...t iiiii e, (24) 9.95 (49) 10.59 (179) 10.48
Options outstanding at end of period .......... 1,498 $12.00 1,417 $11.14 1,232 $9.85
Options exercisahle atend of period .......... 644 $10.75 631 $10.49 464 $10.62
Weighted average fair value of options
granted ....... .o $ 6.69 $ 9.17 $ 361

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2002 (Options in
thousands):

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Remaining Weighted Weighted
Range of Contractual Life Average Average
Exercise Prices Cptions {Years) Exercise Price Uptions Exercise Price

$7.50-8$8.37 301 7.0 $ 763 148 $7.76
9.43-10.50 307 6.7 10.02 206 9.95
11.00-12.98 248 33 12.40 244 12.42
13.00 - 16.32 642 9.2 14.84 ﬁ 15.17
$7.50 - $16.32 1,498 7.3 $12.00 644 $10.75
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(12) Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The accumulated other comprehensive income as of December 31, 2002 consists of the following {In thousands):
December 31, 2002

Met
Gross  Tax of
ltem Effect Tax

Cumulative translation adjustment . ... . i $133% $ - $1,33
Additional minimum pension liability ... {1,604) 608 (996)
Unrealized net gains-marketable securities ..............oo i 27 {10) 17

Total accumulated comprehensive income (I0sS) . ......o v $ (242) @ $ 356

Accumulated other comprehensive income at December 31, 2001 consisted of the accumulated translation adjustment
of $4.1 million.

{13) Employee Benefit Plans

We sponsor several defined benefit pensian plans covering substantially all of our U.S. non-union employees. Benefits
are based primarily on years of service and employees’ compensation. Our funding policy for these plans is to contribute
annually the maximum amount that can be deducted for federal income tax purposes.

Additionally, substantially all of our U.S. employees are eligible to participate in a 401(k} savings plan. Under this plan,
we match a specified percentage of employee contributions, subject to certain limitations.

The companents of net benefit expense are as follows (In thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,
2002 2001 2000
Service cost-benefits earned .......... . $1,396 $1,210 $1,071
Interest cost on benefits obligation ......... ... . i e e N 733 643
Estimated retUrn 0N ASSEES .. ... .ttt ettt e e e e (680)  (815)  (793)
Net periodic cost of defined benefitsplans ............. ... . i i i i 1527 1,128 921
Cost of 401(k) plan contribUtions ... .. ..ot 335 368 345
Net benefit plans BXPeNSE ... ... .t e $1,862 $1,496 $1,266
The weighted average assumptions used in determining the obligations of pension benefit plans are shown below:
Year Ended
December 31,
W 2y 20
DISCOUNE FALE ..ottt ettt et e e e et e e e 6.75% 7.50% 8.00%
Expected return on plan @SSets .. ... .ottt e 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%
Rate of COMPENSAtiON INCrEASE .. ...\ttt et e e e 4.00% 4.00% 5.00%

A 25 basis point increase or decrease in the expected return of plan assets would increase or decrease the pension
expense by approximately $25,000. We have assumed an 8.75% expected rate of return of plan assets for 2003. A

25 basis point increase or decrease in the assumed discount rate assumption would increase or decrease our interest
expense by approximately $100,000.
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The funded status of the defined benefit plan and amounts recognized in the balance sheet are as follows
(In thousands):

December 31,
2032 2081
Change in projected benefit obligation
Balance atbeginning of year ... ... ... e $11,316 $ 9,187
S VICE COST ...ttt e 1,396 1,210
INEErESt COSt .o ot e e 811 733
Actuarial (gain) oSS . ... vttt e e 1,491 (272)
Benefits DaId . . ..o (157) {120}
AdMINISIrative BXPENSES ...\ \ ittt ittt e ie et e ce e i {209) (173)
Liabilities acquired .. ... ot 2673 -
1 3= 0T 41 TP - 751
Balance atend ofyear ......... ... e $17,321 $11,316
Change in fair value of plan assets
Balance atbeginningofyear ... ... . . $ 6,691 $ 8623
Actual FetUMM BN @SSBES . ..o\ttt ittt ettt e e e e e {1,108) (1,708)
Benefits paid .. ..o (157 (120)
AdMINIStrative BXPENSES ...\ttt et ettt e et e et e e {209) (173}
ASSEtS ACQUITET ..ottt it e e e 1,562 -
Employer contributions . ... o 5717 69
Fair value of plan assetsatendofyear .............. ... ... i $12,496 $ 6,691
Funded status
Plan assets less than projected benefit obligation ............... ... ... .. ..... ${3,715)  $(4,625)
Unrecognized transition @SSet . ... ...t ir i i e (72) (136)
Unrecognized prior SErViCe COSt . ... vttt et 857 955
Unrecognized acquired prior SErvice Cost . ..ot i, 1,111 -
Unrecognized actuarial (0SS ........oviiiiiiii i i 4,566 1,253
Net prepaid (accrued) benefitcost ... ... $ 2,747 $(2,553}

During the year ended December 31, 2002, a $2.3 million adjustment was made to record the minimum pension liability
required to the extent the accumulated benefit obligations exceeded plan assets as of September 30, 2002, the pian
measurement date. In conjunction with the adjustment to the liability account, a $0.7 million intangible asset was
recorded up to the amount of unrecognized prior service cost for those plans. A $1.0 million corresponding charge, net
of tax, was recorded to other accumulated comprehensive income.

{14) Comtingencies, Guarantees and Environmental Remediation

We, like other worldwide manufacturing companies, are subject to a variety of potential liabilities connected with our
business operations, including potential liabilities and expenses associated with possible product defects or failures
and compliance with environmental laws. We maintain $5.0 million in aggregate product liability insurance and

$75.0 million under an excess umbrella liability insurance policy. We also maintain a separate product liability policy
with aggregate limits of $200.0 million for the aviation products produced by gur worldwide operations.
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We believe this coverage to be consistent with industry practices. Nonetheless, such insurance coverage may not be
adequate to protect us fully against substantial damage claims, which may arise from product defects and failures or
from environmental liability.

Contingencies

Like many other manufacturers of fluid control products, we have been named as defendants in a growing number of
product liability actions brought on behalf of individuals who seek compensation for their alleged exposure to airborne
asbestos fibers. In particular, Leslie, Spence, and Hoke, all subsidiaries of CIRCOR, collectively have been named as
defendants or third-party defendants in asbestos related claims brought on behalf of approximately 14,000 plaintiffs
against anywhere from 50 to 400 defendants. In some instances, CIRCOR also has been named as successor in interest
to one or more of these subsidiaries. These cases have been brought in state courts in California, Connecticut,
Maryland, Michigan, Mississippi, New Jersey and New York, with the vast majority of claimants having brought their
claims in Mississippi. The cases brought on behalf of the vast majority of claimants seek unspecified compensatory and
punitive damages against all defendants in the aggregate. However, with respect to the complaints filed on behalf of
approximately 121 plaintiffs in New York, each plaintiff seeks $5.0 million compensatory damages and $5.0 million
punitive damages against the aggregate of defendants under each of six causes of action. Similarly, with respect to the
complaints filed in California on behalf of eleven claimants, each plaintiff seeks approximately $400,000 compensatory
damages and $2.5 million punitive damages against the aggregate of defendants. And, with respect to approximately
1,384 claimants in Mississippi, each such claimant seeks approximately $5.0 million compensatory damages and

$50.0 million punitive damages against the aggregate of defendants.

Any components containing ashestos formerly used in Leslie, Spence and Hoke products were entirely internal to the
product and, we believe, would not give rise to ambient asbestos dust during normal operation. As such, we believe that
we have minimal, if any, liability with respect to the vast majority of these cases and that these cases, in the aggregate,
will not have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. However, due 1o
the nature and number of variables associated with asbestos related claims, such as the rate at which new claims may
be filed; the availability of insurance policies to continue to recover certain of our costs relating to the defense and
payment of these claims; the impact of bankruptcies of other companies currently or historically defending asbestos
claims including our co-defendants; the uncertainties surrounding the litigation process from jurisdiction to jurisdiction
and from case to case; the impact of potential changes in legislative or judicial standards; the type and severity of the
disease alleged to be suffered by each claimant; and increases in the expense of medical treatment, we are unable to
reliably estimate the ultimate costs to us of these claims.

As we previously have disclosed, we learned on July 12, 2000 that the United States Customs Service (“Customs”) had
commenced an investigation to determine whether our subsidiary KF was then in compliance with country of origin
marking requirements on those valves that KF imparts from sources in the People’s Republic of China including our joint
venture there. We believe that Customs is concluding its investigation and are hopeful that we will be able to achieve
resolution of this matter in the near future. In this regard, although we continue to believe that any such resolution will
not result in any material financial impact, we cannot provide any assurances regarding the timing or nature of such a
resolution. Moreover, if the investigation were to prove that violations of the Customs laws occurred, KF could be
subjected ta civil fines, forfeitures and (if such violations were determined ta be intentional) criminal penalties, which
could be material.

Guarantees

We execute stand-by letters of credit, bid bonds, performance bonds and other guarantees in the normal course of
business that ensure our performance or payments to third parties. The aggregate notional value of these instruments
was $6.1 million at December 31, 2002. These instruments have expiration dates ranging from less than one month to
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eight years from December 31, 2002. Sixty-four percent (84%) of the $8.1 million of the instruments expire within one year
from December 31, 2002, with a total of eighty-seven percent (87%) expiring within two years. Our historical experience
with these types of guarantees has been good. No claims have been paid in any of the fiscal years presented. We
believe that the likelihood of demand for payments relating to the outstanding instruments is minimal.

Environmental Remediation

We are currently a party to or otherwise involved in various administrative or legal proceedings under federal, state or
local environmental laws or regulations involving a number of sites, in some cases as a participantin a group of potentially
responsible parties, referred to as PRPs. Two of these sites, the Sharkey and Combe Landfills in New Jersey, are listed on
the National Priorities List. With respect to the Sharkey Landfill in New Jersey, we have been allocated 0.75% of the
remediation costs, an amount that is not material to us. With respect to the Combe Landfill, we have settled both the
Federal Government's claim and the State of New Jersey’s claim for an amount that is immaterial to us. Moreover, our
insurers have covered defense and settlement costs to date with respect to the Sharkey and Combe Landfills. In addition,
we have also been named as a PRP with respect to the Solvent Recovery Service of New England site and the Old
Southington landfill site, both in Connecticut. These sites are also an the National Priorities List but, with respect to both
sites, we have the right to indemnification from the prior owners of the affected subsidiaries. We also have been identified
as a PRP with respect to the Lightman Drum Company site in New Jersey and, in this matter, we also have the right to
indemnification from the former owners of the affected subsidiary. Based on currently available information, we believe
that any share of clean-up costs at these sites attributable to us will not be material, particularly given our indemnification
rights against the respective former owners.

We have reviewed all of our pending judicial and lega! proceedings, reasonably anticipated costs and expenses in
connection with such proceedings, and availability and limits of our insurance coverage, and we have established reserves
that we believe are appropriate in light of those outcomes that we believe are probable and estimable at this time.

(15} Financial Instruments

Fair Value

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and trade payables approximate fair value
because of the short maturity of these financial instruments. Marketable securities are marked to market at the balance
sheet date. The fair value of the senior unsecured notes, based on the value of comparable instruments brought to
market, is $63.1 million as of December 31, 2002. The fair value of the Company’s variable rate debt approximates its
carrying value.

As of January 1, 2001, we adopted FASB Statement No. 133. “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities,” {“Statement No. 133"), as amended by Statement No. 138. Statement No. 133 establishes accounting and
reporting standards for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts,
and hedging activities. It requires that all derivative instruments be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value as assets
or liabilities. The adoption of Statement No. 133 did not have a material effect on assets, liabilities, accumulated
comprehensive income or netincome.

In the normal course of our business, we manage risk associated with foreign exchange rates through a variety of
strategies, including the use of hedging transactions, executed in accordance with our policies. As a matter of policy,
we ordinarily do not use derivative instruments unless there is an underlying exposure. Any change in the value of our
derivative instruments would be substantially offset by an opposite change in the underlying hedged items. We do not
use derivative instruments for speculative trading purposes.

Accounting Policies

Using qualifying criteria defined in Statement No. 133, derivative instruments are designated and accounted for as either a
hedge of a recognized asset or liability {fair value hedge) or a hedge of a forecasted transaction (cash flow hedge). For a
fair value hedge, both the effective and ineffective portions of the change in fair value of the derivative instrument, along
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with an adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item for fair value changes attributable to the hedged risk, are
recognized in earnings. For a cash flow hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument that are highly
effective are deferred in accumulated other comprehensive income or loss until the underlying hedged item is recognized
in earnings. If the effective portion of fair value or cash flow hedges were to cease to qualify for hedge accounting, or to
be terminated, it would continue to be carried on the balance sheet at fair value until settled; however, hedge accounting
would be discontinued prospectively. If forecast transactions were no longer probable of occurring, amounts previously
deferred in accumulated other comprehensive income or loss would be recognized immediately in earnings.

Foreign Currency Risk

We use forward contracts to manage the currency risk related to business transactions denominated in foreign
currencies. To the extent the underlying transactions hedged are completed, the contracts do not subject us to
significant risk from exchange rate movements because they offset gains and losses on the related foreign currency
denominated transactions. Our foreign currency forward contracts have not been designated as hedging instruments
and, therefore, did not qualify for fair value or cash flow hedge treatment under the criteria of Statement No. 133 for the
year ended December 31, 2002. Therefore, the unrealized gains and losses on our contracts have been recognized as a
component of other expense in the consolidated statements of operations. Net unrealized gains attributable to foreign
currency forward contracts were $0.1 million at December 31, 2002, and less than $0.1 million at December 31, 2001. As
of December 31, 2002, we had forward contracts to buy currencies with face values of $1.0 million and fair values of $1.1
million. These contracts mature on various dates between January and March 2003.

Operating Lease Commitments

Rental expense under operating lease commitments amounted to: $4.0 million during the year ended December 31, 2002,
$3.4 million during the year ended December 31, 2001, and $3.2 million during the year ended December 31, 2000.
Minimum rental commitments due under non-cancelable operating leases, primarily for office and warehouse facilities,
at December 31, 2002 were (In thousands):

Year ending December 31,

2003 L e $ 3,249
2004 . 2,847
2008 2,431
2006 ... 2,308
2007 L 2,066
Thereafter .. ... 3,190

$16,097

(18) Segment Information

The following table presents certain reportable segment information (In thousands):

Instrumentation &
Thermal Fluid

Controls Petrochemical Corporate  Conselidated

Products Products Adjustments Total
Year Ended December 31, 2002
Nettrade revenues ...........covvereenennns $190,524 $140,924 $ - $331,448
Operatingincome (loss) ...................... 28,614 9,480 (7,720) 30,374
Income (loss) before income taxes ............. 28,934 9,769 (14,364) 24,339
Identifiableassets ................coiun 390,067 165,291 -~ (164,624) 390,734
Capital expenditures ......................... 2,134 2,097 187 4,418

Depreciation and amortization ................. 6,057 4,246 347 10,650
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Instrumentation &

Thermal Fluid

Contrels Petrochemical Corporate  Consolidated

Products Products Adjustments Total
Year Ended December 31, 200%
Nettrade revenuUes ..........ooveererunnin.n. $193,297 $149,786 $ - $343,083
Operatingincome(loss) ...................... 32,158 9,194 (7,735) 33,617
Income (loss) before income taxes ............. 31,296 8,922 (14,224) 25,994
Identifiableassets ................. .ot 268,315 157,672 {39,866) 386,121
Capital expenditures ......................... 2,934 1,959 57 4,950
Depreciation and amortization ................. 8,067 4,652 327 13,046
Year Ended December 31, 2000
Nettrade revenues ............cvvvvvinvnen.. $183,524 $133,339 $ - $316,863
Operating income{loss) ...................... 31.211 3,137 (6,712) 27,636
Income (loss) before incometaxes ............. 30,209 5.618 (18,227) 17,600
ldentifiableassets ................... ... ... 245,100 144,405 {42,443} 347,062
Capital expenditures ............c..oovieenn, 2,063 1,499 181 3,743
Depreciation and amortization ................. 7,981 4,764 260 13,005

Each reporting segment is individually managed and has separate financial results that are reviewed by the Company’s
chief aperating decision-maker. Each segment contains closely related products that are unique to the particular
segment. Refer to note 1 for further discussion of the products included in each segment.

In calculating prefit from operations for individual reporting segments, substantial administrative expenses incurred at
the operating level that were common to more than one segment were allocated based upon specific identification of
costs, employment related information or net revenues. Certain headquarters expenses of an operational nature also
were allocated to segments and geagraphic areas.

All intercompany transactions have been eliminated, and inter-segment revenues are not significant.
{a) Net revenues by geographic area {In thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000

United StatBS ...\ttt $182,058 $226,069 $220,568
O 1T T - 25,857 32,500 18,020
GOIMIAMY .\ttt et e e e 17,220 11,706 1,820
Fran G . i e 10,649 9,397 1,495
Netherlands . ... 11,928 5.726 3,566
03T 83,736 57,685 65,394

B0 U =L LTV T - $331,448 $343,083 $316,863
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(b) Long-lived assets by geographic area {In thousands):

December 31,
2002 2001 2000
UNited StatES .ttt $48,852 $50,001 $55,040
(7= 0117 117 1,087 6,218 49
FramCE oottt 1,125 1,039 -
Al . 2,965 2,651 3,107
O 1T T - 2,165 2,382 2,262
013 2,171 4,682 4,336
Total long-lived @SSets . ... .. .ottt $64,365 $66,973 $64,794

In March 2002, we transferred SSI from the Petrachemical Praducts segment ta the Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid

Controls Products segment. We believe that this change better reflects the products and markets that SSI

serves. Prior periods have been restated and net revenues, operating income, and identifiable assets are not materially
different with this reciassification. During October 2002, we acquired Tomco and U.S. Para Plate. On a combined basis,
the long-lived assets of these two operations totaled $2.1 million at December 31, 2002.

{17) Quarterly Financial information (Unaudited, in thousands, except per share information)

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Year ended December 31, 2002

NEETBVENUES ...ttt e e et et e e e $79,462 $82,541 $83,092 $86,353
Gross profit ... i 24542 24623 24,040 25,080
NELiNCOME o i e 3,685 3,839 3,770 4,283
Earnings per common share:
BaSIC o $ 025 $ 026 $ 025 $ 028
DilUted .. 0.24 0.24 0.24 0.28
Dividends per common Share ...ttt $0.0375 $0.0375 $0.0375 $0.0375
Stock Price range:
High . $ 2238, $2225 $1805 $ 16.58
Lo e 16.95 16.85 13.25 11.75
Year ended December 31, 2001
Nt TEVBMUBS . i i $87,946 $83,390 $84,287 $87,460
Bross Profit ... e 26,071 26,150 25,152 26,104
Nt iNCOME .ttt e 3,723 3,829 3,502 4,542
Earnings per common share:
BaSIC . i e $ 028 $ 026 $ 024 § 031
DilUted . ..o e 0.27 0.25 0.23 0.29
Dividends per common share ..........oviriini it $0.0375 $0.0375 $0.0375 $0.0375
Stock Price range:
High $1520 $2410 $ 1940 $ 19.69
P 10.00 13.10 13.65 15.05
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First  Second  Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Year ended December 31, 200D

[NV o =17 111V T- - PP $82,305 $80,268 $75,988 $78,301
Gross Profit ... o e e e 26,219 23640 23008 22,924
NV ] e T 3,186 2,426 2,287 2,661
Earnings per common share: :
BaSIC ..t e $ 024 $ 018 $ 017 $ 0.20
DIUtEd . o 0.24 0.18 0.17 0.20
Dividends percommonshare .............cooiiiiiiiiii $ - $0.0375 $0.0375 $0.0375
Stock Price range:
High oo e $1525 $1388 $1050 & 11.88
oW e 9.94 750 7.00 9.25

{18) Special Charges

During the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, we incurred costs associated with the closure, consolidation
and reorganization of certain manufacturing operations as follows {In thousands):
Severance Benefits Facility/Exit Costs  Total

Balance as of December31,1999 ...... ...ttt $ - $ - 3 -
Charges ... ..o i 1,068 843 1,909
Less:cashpayments...............c i 1,065 ﬁ 1,909

Balance as of December 31,2000 ................. ... ... ..., - - -
Charges ... 79 125 204
Less:cashpayments ... ...ttt 33 _EZ 90

Balance as of December 31,2001 .................ccoviivnt.. 48 68 114
CRargeS . o 206 539 745
Less:cashpayments .......... ... . i, 186 @ 775

Balance as of December 31,2002 ............coviriininnnn.t. $ 66 $18 $ 84

Costs incurred during 2002 and 2001 were related to the Petrochemical Products segment. Costs in 2000 were related to
actions taken in both the Instrumentation and Thermal Fluid Controls Products and Petrochemical Products segments of
$1.6 million and $0.3 million, respectively. A write-down of fixed assets of $0.3 million is included in the facility and exit
special charges incurred for the year ended December 31, 2002. As a result of these actions taken there were

16 employee positions terminated during 2002, 36 during 2001 and 88 during 2000. Special charges have been recognized
as incurred. The remaining costs at December 31, 2002 are expected to be paid within the first half of 2003.

(18) Capital Structure

We have adopted a shareholder rights plan providing for the issuance of rights that will cause substantial dilution to a
person or group of persons that acquires 15% or more of our shares of common stock, unless the rights are redeemed.
These rights allow shareholders of our common stock to purchase a unit consisting of one ten thousandth of a share of
our series A junior participating cumulative preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share, at a cash exercise price per unit
of $48.00, subject to adjustments.
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{20) Relationship with our Former Parent

At the spin-off date of October 18, 1999, all of our common shares were distributed on a pro rata basis to the record date
holders of Watts common shares at a ratio of one share for each two outstanding Watts shares. After the spin-off,
Watts had no ownership in us, however, certain of our shares were held by the Watts pension trust on behalf of Watts’
employees. We entered into separation and other related agreements {the “Distribution Agreement”}, outlined below,
governing the spin-off transaction and our subsequent relationship with Watts. Such agreements provided certain
indemnities to the parties, and provided for the aliocation of tax and other assets, liabilities and obligations arising from
periods prior to the spin-off, '

Until the spin-off, we were a member of Watts’ consolidated group for federal income tax purposes. Each member of the
consolidated group is liable for the federal income tax liability of the other members of the group, as well as for pension
and benefit funding liabilities of the other group members. Under federal law we continue to be contingently liable for
these Watts consolidated group liabilities for periods beginning before the spin-off.

We entered into a distribution agreement with Watts that allocates tax, pension and benefit funding liabilities between
Watts and us. Under this agreement, Watts maintains full control and absolute discretion with regard to any combined
or consolidated United States federal and state tax filings for periods through the spin-off date. Watts also maintains full
control and absolute discretion regarding common tax audit issues of such entities. These arrangements may result in
conflicts of interest with Watts. In addition, if Watts is ultimately unable to satisfy its liabilities, we could be responsible
for satisfying them, despite the distribution agreement.

At the time of the spin-off, Watts received a ruling from the (RS to the effect that, for United States federal income tax
purposes, the spin-off would be tax-free to Watts and its shareholders. If the undertakings made to the IRS regarding
the spin-off were not complied with or if representations made to the IRS regarding the spin-off were inaccurate, we
could lose the henefit of the IRS tax ruling and the IRS could assert that the spin-off was a taxable distribution. In that
case, under United States federal income tax law, we would be jointly and severally liable with Watts for a material
amount of federal income tax. In our distribution agreement with Watts, we agreed that we would be wholly responsible
for that tax if it results from our act ar omission, and Watts will be wholly responsible for that tax if it results from Watts'
act or omission. Under federal income tax law, however, we would be required to pay that tax if Watts was unable to,
regardless of the distribution agreement.

Prior and subsequent to the spin-off transaction, we conducted business with various other subsidiaries of Watts, under
various contracts and agreements. The table below summarizes transactions with these related parties for the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 {In thousands);
Year Ended December 31,
2032 2001 2000

Purchases of INVeNtOry ... ... ..ot $2322  $3,234 34,277
Sale 0f GO0OS ... i 393 521 835
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Additions
Balance at Chargedte  Charged to Balance at
Beginning of Costs Other End
Description Period and Expenses  Accounts Deductions{l) of Period

{In thousands)

Fiscal Year ended December 31, 2002

Deducted from asset account;

Alfowance for doubtful accounts .. ... $2,637 $17 $ 42 $ 617 $2,041
Fiscal Year ended December 31, 2001

Deducted from asset account:

Allowance for doubtful accounts .. ... $2,831 $754 $230(3) $1,178 $2,637
Fiscal Year ended December 31, 2000

Deducted from asset account;

Allowance for doubtful accounts .. ... $2,683 $ 77 - $ (M) $2,831

(1) Uncollectable accounts written off, net of recoveries.
{2)° Acquired in connection with the acquisition of Tomco and U.S. Para Plate.
(3) Includes $223 acquired in connection with the acquisition of RTK and SART.
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